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GENERAL INFORMATION

General information

Trading name: Bao Ngoc Investment Group Joint Stock Compay

Business Registration Certificate No.: 0105950129

Charter capital: 312,493,940,000 VND. |

Owner's capital: 312,493,940,000 VND.,

Address: The building of Bao Ngoc, Lot A2CN8, Tu Liem Industrial Cluster, Phuong
Canh Ward, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi City, Vietnam.

Telephone: 043.780.5022

Website: https://banhbaongoc.vn/

Securities code (if any): BNA

Establishment and development process

Bao Ngoc Investment Group Joint Stock Company (BNA), originally founded as Bao
Ngoc Bakery in 1986 at 250 Hang Bong, Hoan Kiem, Hanoi, gradually transformed into

- Bao Ngoc Pastry Manufacturing Facility from 1989 to 1991.

In 2012, Bao Ngoc Pastry Manufacturing Facility was transformed into Bao Ngoc
Production Investment Joint Stock Company.

The year 2020 marked a significant milestone for Bao Ngoc as the company officially
became a public company and was listed on the Hanoi Stock Exchange (HNX). After
nearly 40 years of operation and development, Bao Ngoc has gradually built its
reputation and brand in the Vietnamese market.

In 2021, the company increased its capital to 199,999,890,000 VND

In 2022, the company increased its capital to 249,998,550,000 VND

In 2024, the company increased its capital to 312,493,940,000 VND and changed its
name to Bao Ngoc Investment Group Joint Stock Company.

Business lines and locations of the business

Business lines

Production of flour-based cakes, sugar, cocoa, chocolate, and confectionery.
Production of pasta, noodles, and similar products, production of prepared food and
ready-to-eat meals

Wholesale of food products

Retail of food products in specialized stores.

Other business support services not categorized elsewhere.

Location of business

+ The company’s headquarters is located at Bao Ngoc Building, Lot A2CN8, Tu Liem




Industrial Cluster, Phuong Canh Ward, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi City, Vietnam.
+ The subsidiary in Ho Chi Minh City is located at BNA Building, 47A Tan Huong Street,
~Tan Thanh Ward, Tan Phu District, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam.
+ The Northern production facility is located at Di Trach, Hoai Duc District, Hanoi City,
Vietnam. '
+ The Southern production facility is located at C6A/35, Ap 3, Vinh Loc B Commune,
Binh Chanh District, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam.

3. Information about governance model, business organization and managerial apparatu

- Governance model: The cdmpany operates under the governance model specified in
point a, Article 137 of the 2020 Enterprise Law, which includes: the General Meeting of
Shareholders, the Board of Directors, the Supervisory Board, and the Chief Executive
Officer (CEO).

- Management structure
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- Subsidiaries, associated companies

+ Number of directly consolidated subsidiaries: 03; Number of indirectly consolidated

subsidiaries: 01.
+ Directly consolidated subsidiaries: (provide list or details of the companies if needed).

1. Company Nam Bao Ngoc Southern Production Investment Joint
Stock Company. '

Address 47A Tan Huong Street, Tan Thanh Ward, Tan Phu
District, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam
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Business Field

Production of confectionery products

Charter Capital 90,000,000,000 VND
Paid-up Capital 87,050,000,000 VND
Ownership Percentage 96.72%

2. Company Name

Bao Ngoc Northern Production Investment Limited
Liability Company

Address

Vuc Village, Di Trach Commune, Hoai Duc District,
Hanoi City, Vietnam

Business Field

Production of confectionery products

Charter Capital

24,000,000,000 VND

Paid-up Capital

21,600,000,000 VND

Ownership Percentage 90%
3. Company Name Bao An Ha Nam Trading & Import-Export Limited
Liability Company

Address

Lot C, CN8 Area, D4 Road, Chau Son Industrial
Park, Chau Son Ward, Phu Ly City, Ha Nam
Province, Vietnam

Business Field

Manufacturing plastic products
Manufacturing products from flour
Real estate business, land use rights owned

Charter Capital 100,000,000,000 VND
Paid-up Capital 99,000,000,000 VND
Ownership Percentage 99%

Indirectly consolidated subsidiary

Indirect Subsidiary Thanh Nam Production & Import-Export Joint Stock
Company
Address Phuoc An Village, Phuoc Binh Ward, Phuoc Long

Town, Binh Phuoc Province, Vietnam

Business Field:

Manufacturing and exporting agricultural products
such as cashew nuts, pepper, durian, etc.

Charter Capital

20,000,000,000 VND

Indirect Ownership

Percentage

49.33%
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4.  Development orientations
- Main objectives of the Company

+ Product and Market: Leverage the Bao Ngoc brand established in 1986 and production
capabilities to develop competitive product lines in the confectionery market. Maintain
the market share of existing products and develop new, high-tech products that meet
consumer trends in Vietnam. Expand industrial fresh cakes and increase revenue and
SKUs at retail points.

+ Investment Activities: Focus on M&A with companies in the fast-moving consumer
goods (FMCG) sector to enhance competitive strength

+ Management: Optimize the management structure and digital transformation to save
costs and time; plan for human resources, recruit and train high-quality employees for
key positions; maintain and spread the core values of the company, creating a
development-oriented environment for employees.

+ Capital: Diversify capital sources, attract partners, and issue private shares to enhance
financial capacity; seek and diversify relationships with credit institutions to access loans
for production and business activities.

- Development strategies in medium and long term
- The company will continue to effectively implement the tasks set and prepare for
strategic steps in the coming years, especially in the context of a market with
unpredictable business fluctuations.

+ Next 5-year development phase: The company will focus on developing a strong
distribution network and expanding production. It will undertake M&A projects to
expand the fast-moving consumer goods (FMCG) ecosystem and broaden the domestic
market..

+ Strategic goals: Diversify products for each market and sales channel to meet the needs
of target customers; produce fresh food with high nutritional value for quick
consumption; cooperate and invest in importing and distributing food from developed
countries; enhance the export of agricultural products and specialty foods from Vietnam
to the world.

- Corporate objectives with regard to Corporate environment, society and community
Sustainability

+ Compliance with Environmental Laws: Bao Ngoc is committed to strictly adhering to
environmental regulations while implementing supporting mechanisms and supervision
to ensure legal compliance. The company will continuously improve and apply modern,
environmentally friendly production technologies in all manufacturing activities. The
goal is not only to fully comply with legal requirements without any environmental
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violations but also to strive to become a role model in the confectionery and food
processing industry for responsible production and environmental protection.

Health and Consumer Benefit Goals: With the aim of protecting health and benefiting -
consumers, Bao Ngoc is committed to researching and developing high-quality,
nutritious products that meet the growing consumer demand. The company will continue
investing in product research and improvement to not only serve customer needs but also
solidify its strong brand position in the market and strengthen customer trust.
Community Development Partnership: The company consistently aligns its business
activities with social and community responsibility. Bao Ngoc will continue to implement
community development programs focused on environmental protection and improving
the quality of life for local communities. The company will establish an environmental
and social governance system that aligns with international standards and practices.
These activities not only demonstrate the company’s responsibility to society but also
contribute to enhancing sustainable value for both the community and the environment..

~ Risks

Economic Risks: Although the company's main products are essential daily consumer
items such as bread and fresh cakes, which are less affected by economic fluctuations, in
the case of an economic downturn or high inflation, consumer purchasing power may
decrease, which would affect overall demand and the company’s revenue..

Price Risks: The company heavily relies on imported raw materials, including flour,
sugar, and milk. As such, the cost of these raw materials is susceptible to global price
fluctuations. Additionally, changes in exchange rates will impact the cost of importing
these materials, leading to increased production costs and affecting the company’s
competitiveness in the market.

Environmental Risks: With fresh cakes being a major product category that has a short
shelf life, improper storage conditions, particularly in humid environments, can lead to
spoilage and product recalls. This could result in revenue losses and damage to the
company’s reputation. Environmental factors, such as high humidity, directly impact the
quality of products, especially perishable goods like fresh cakes.

OPERATIONS IN THE YEAR

Situation of production and business operations

Results of business operations in the year

Revenue

In 2024, Bao Ngoc Company achieved several key milestones in its business operations,
including:
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- Revenue from sales and services reached 1,740,538 million VND, a 20% increase
compared to 2023 (1,448,469 million VND). This impressive growth reflects the
success of the company’s market development and product strategy.. .

- The main reasons for this revenue growth include:

+ The company continued to invest in and develop new product lines such as fresh cakes,
sandwiches, Kisshu cakes, burgers, and exported cashews. These new products met
market demand and contributed to increased revenue..

+ The company boosted sales during key business periods, particularly during the Lunar
New Year and Mid-Autumn Festival, resulting in a significant increase in revenue during
these months..

+ Flexible sales policies: The company adjusted its sales strategy by increasing bonuses,
discounts, and launching promotional programs to stimulate consumer spending and
drive sales growth..

+ Expansion of distribution channels, especially the strong development of the e-
commerce channel, which contributed 5% of the company’s revenue, playing an
important role in the revenue growth strategy.

b)  Cost Structure:

i Ch
Indicator (Cost Structure . 2024 2024 2023 2023 ange
as a Percentage of Unit _ 2024/2023 |
Amount Percentage | Amount | Percentage
Revenue) (%)
Revenue 1,740,538 1,448,469
Million - i
Cost of Goods Sold VND 1.541.863 88.6% 1,269,690 87.7% 0.9%
5 . Million - 04 0
Financial Costs VND 41.394 2.4% 35.099 2.4% 0.0%
Million 9 0
Sales Costs VND 50,434 29% 43.926 30% -0.1%
Administrative Expenses i__NDon 26,024 1.7% 24,548 1.7% 0.0%
. Million o7 o [: 74
Other Costs VND 4'153 0.2% 5=340 0.4% -0.1%
Total Costs if,,’é;"“ 1,666,868 1,378,603 0.6%

Total costs increased from 1,373,797 million VND to 1,666,868 million VND,
reflecting a 0.9% rise.
Cost of Goods Sold:

+ Increased by 0.9%, accounting for 88.6% of total revenue in 2024 (1,541,863 million
VND) compared to 87.7% in 2023 (1,269,690 million VND).

+ Despite the increase in revenue, this cost also rose slightly, influenced by fluctuations
in raw material prices in the broader market.
Financial Costs:
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+ Remained stable at 2.4% of revenue, but increased from 35,099 million VND to 41,394

s

million VND.

Sales Costs:

Decreased slightly by 0.1%, from 3.0% in 2023 to 2.9% in 2024.

-The slight increase is due to interest rate fluctuations during the period. e e e

+ However, the absolute cost increased from 43,926 million VND to 50,434 million VND,
due to the company expanding its sales team and increasing sales points.

Administrative Expenses:

+ The cost percentage remained stable at 1.7% for both years.
However, the total amount increased from 24,548 million VND to 29,024 million VND,
indicating additional investments in management activities.

1.2.

Other Costs:

Decreased from 0.4% t0'0.2%, falling from 5,340 million VND in 2023 to 4,153 million

VND in 2024.

Although the cost structure increased in 2024, the changes were not significant. The
ratios of sales costs and administrative expenses remained relatively stable, indicating

that the company maintained good control over activities that are not directly related to

production.

Implementation situation/actual progress against the plan

Comparison of 2024 Performance vs. 2024 Plan

Unit: Million VND

% Achievement vs.
: 2024 Plan 2024 Actual
Indicator Plan
Revenue 1,680,000 1,740,538 104%
Net Profit 68,000 54,351 79%

Revenue achieved 1,740,538 million VND, 104% of the planned 1,680,000 million
VND. The company exceeded its target mainly due to flexible sales policies, the
development of new product lines, and significant sales during major campaigns like Tet
and promotional programs. Additionally, the expansion of e-commerce channels
contributed 5% of the total revenue, significantly boosting revenue growth in 2024.

Net Profit reached 54,531 million VND, only 79% of the planned 68,000 million VND.
Despite the revenue exceeding expectations, higher costs in goods sold, selling expenses,
financial costs, and corporate management expenses had a significant impact on the final

profit.

Organization and Human resource
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2.1,

2.2.

b)

List of the Board of Management

Mr. Tran Xuan Vinh — Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

Gender: Male T

Year of Birth: 1977

Nationality: Vietnam

Educational Background: University Degree

Since January 2024: CEO

Ownership Percentage: 1.25% voting shares of the Company

Ms. Dinh Thi Thily Hanh — Chief Accountant

Gender: Female

Year of Birth: 1981

Nationality: Vietnam

Educational Background: Bachelor's Degree in Finance and Accounting
Ownership Percentage: 0% voting shares

Changes in the Board of Management:

January 15, 2024: Mrs. Bui Thi Thanh Huong was relieved of her duties as CEO.
January 15, 2024: Mr. Tran Xuén Vinh was appointed as the new CEO.

January 1, 2025: Mr. Nguyén Duy Quyét will be relieved of his duties as Chief
Accountant.

January 1, 2025: Ms. Dinh Thi Thiy Hanh will be appointed as Chief Accountant.

. Number of staffs. Brief information and changes on the employee’s policies

Number of Employees

Criteria 2024 (Persons) Proportion (%)

I. By Education Level

1. Bachelor's Degree and Higher 100 16%

2. College/Intermediate Degree 150 23%

3. Vocational and Technical Workers 140 22%

4. Unskilled Labor 250 39%

II. By Gender

1. Male 320 50%

2. Female 320 50%
Total 640 100%

Summary of Employee Policies and Changes

Working Hours: The company strictly adheres to the working hours and holiday
regulations as prescribed by the current Labor Code.

Salary and Bonus Policy: Bao Ngoc's salary system is based on fairness, evaluating the
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skills, capacity, seniority, and work performance of employees. This system ensures
compliance with the state-mandated minimum wage regulations.

« Social- Security Contributions: The company- fully- complies -with the regulations
regarding the contributions to social insurance, health insurance, unemployment

insurance, and occupational accident and disease insurance, as stipulated by the current
Labor Code.

Investment activities, project implementation

3.1. Major investments
In 2024, the company did not carry out any major investments related to the issuance of
securities, financial investments, or project investments.

3.2. Subsidiaries, associated companies

Unit: Million VND

Indicator 2023 2024 2024/2023
(%)
Total assets 1,115,696 | 1,617,193 45%
Net revenue 1,432,606 | 1,726,061 20%
Cost of goods sold 1,269,690 | 1,541,863 21%
Financial income 3,703 8,243 123%
Financial expenses 35,099 41,394 18%
Selling expenses 43,926 50,434 15%
Administrative expenses 24,548 29,024 18%
Operating profit 63,045 71,587 14%
Other profit -5,33 (1,963) -63%
Profit before tax 57,714 69,623 21%
Profit after tax 44,356 54,351 23%
4.  Financial situation
a) Financial situation
Unit: Million VND
Indicators Year 2023 Year 2024 % change
Total asset 1,115,696 1,617,193 45%
Net revenue 1,432,606 1,726,061 20%
Profit from business activities 63,045 71,587 14%
Other profits (5,330) (1,963) -63%
Profit before tax 57,714 69,623 21%

10
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Indicators Year 2023 Year 2024 % change
Profit after tax 44,356 54,351 23%
e = - ,
b)  Major financial indicators _ _
No. Indicators Unit 2023 2024
1 | Solvency ratio
- Current ratio: :
times 15 1.31
Short term Asset/Short term debt
- Quick ratio
Short term Asset - Inventories times 0.81 0.84
Short term D
2 | Capital structure Ratio
- Debt/Total assets ratio times 0.57 0.67
- Debt/Owner's Equity ratio times 1.32 2.01
3 | Operation capability Ratio
Inventory turnover: ‘ hpres 3.01 153
(Cost of goods sold/Average inventory) | -
(Net revenue/ Average Total Assets) turns 1.28 1.07
4 | Profitability
- Profit after tax/ Net revenue Ratio % 3.1% 3.1%
- Profit after tax/ total capital Ratio % 11.3% 10,1%
- Profit after tax/ Total assets Ratio % 4.0% 3.36%
- Profit fro'm business activities/ Net % 4.4% 4.15%
revenue Ratio

5. Shareholders structure, change in the owner's equity.
5.1. Shares

STho::iSnumber and types of floating 31,249,394 shares
Type of shares in circulation Common shares
Number of freely transferable shares 31,249,394 shares
Number of restricted shares 0 shares

5.2. Shareholders structure
As of November 12, 2024:

11
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No. | Criterion Number of Shares Percentage (%)
1 | Major shareholders 11,269,668 36.06%
2 | Minor shareholders 19,979,726 ... .- - 63.94%
Total 31,249,394 100%
3 | Individual shareholders - 31,231,364 1 99.94%
4 | Institutional shareholders 18,030 0.06%
Total 31,249,394 100%
5 | Domestic shareholders 31,036,162 99.32%
6 | Foreign shareholders 213.232 0.68%
Total 31,249,394 100%
Maximum foreign ownership rate 0%
5.3. Change in the owner's equity
No. Date Number of Par Type of Issuance | Charter Capital
Shares Issued Value (VND)
(VND)
Conversion to
1 2012 2,000,000 10,000 Joint Stock 20,000,000.000
Company
Issuance to
2 06/2016 600,000 10,000 Existing 26,000,000,000
Shareholders
Issuance to
3 07/2016 2,400, 000 10,000 Existing 50,000,000,000
Shareholders
Issuance to
A 07/2017 5,000,000 10,000 Existing 80,000,000,0000
Shareholders
3 10/2021 3,999,989 10,000 Stock Dividend 119,999,890,000
Issuance to
6 12/2021 8,000,000 10,000 Existing 199,999,890,000
Shareholders
7 12/2022 4,999,866 10,000 Stock Dividend | 249,998,550,000
8 12/2024 6,249,539 10,000 Stock Dividend | 312,493,940,000

5.4. Transaction of treasury stocks: No

12
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5.5. Other securities: No

6.

6.1.

a)
b)

6.4.

Environment-Social-Governance (ESG) Report of the Company

Environmental Impact - :

Total direct and indirect GHG emission: No emissions reported.

Measures and initiatives to reduce GHG emission:

The company has optimized production processes to save energy by adjusting production
steps to eliminate waste, especially in thermal processes such as heating and cooling.
The company has also set regulations to save energy, such as regularly checking
equipment, limiting energy use during peak hours, and applying energy-saving
technology.

Staff training on energy-saving measures in daily work is crucial for increasing
awareness and implementing small but effective actions to reduce energy waste within
the company.

Management of raw materials

The total amount of raw materials used for the manufacture and packaging of the
products as well as services of the organization during the year: 1,273,942,217,195 VND
The percentage of materials recycled to produce products and services of the
organization: No

Energy consumption

Energy consumption - directly and indire

Direct energy consumption: 30,000 kWh per month

Indirect energy consumption: 1,000 kWh per month

Energy savings through initiatives of efficiently using energy.

10% reduction in energy consumption.

The report on energy saving initiatives

Results of Initiatives and Measures to Reduce Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Energy savings through process optimization: By optimizing production processes, the
company reduced energy consumption by 8% in thermal processes (heating and cooling).
Additionally, reducing usage during peak hours helped unload the electricity system and
saved costs.

Employee energy-saving training: 100% of employees applied energy-saving measures
in their daily work, resulting in a 5% reduction in energy consumption in office and
production activities..

Outcome: These initiatives led to a 13% reduction in total energy consumption,
contributing to a decrease in greenhouse gas emissions and cost savings.

Water consumption

13
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a)

b)

6.5.

a)

b)

Water supply and amount of water used

Water supply source: Clean water plants in industrial zones

Average monthly water usage: 2,000 m? S s

Percentage and total volume of water recycled and reused: No

Compliance with the law on environmental protection:

Number of times the company is fined for failing to comply with laws and regulations
on environment: No. |

The total amount to be fined for failing to comply with laws and regulations on the
environment: No.

Policies related to employees

Number of employees, average wages of workers.

Number of employees: 640 employees.

Average salary in 2024: 7,000,000 VND.

Labor policies to ensure health, safety and welfare of workers.

Kham strc khoe dinh ky: Ngudi lao déng can duoc kham stic khoe dinh ky dé dam bao
stic khoe tdt, phét hién sém cac bénh tat lién quan dén cong viéc.

Regular health check-ups: Employees must undergo regular health checks to ensure good
health and detect any work-related illnesses early.

Social and health insurance: Employees must be enrolled in social and health insurance
programs, which provide support in case of accidents, illness, or work-related injuries.
Other benefits: Additional benefits may include support for meals, housing, bonuses,
childcare allowances, and assistance for employees facing difficulties such as childbirth,
long-term illness, or retirement.

Holiday and annual leave: Employees are entitled to holiday leave and annual paid leave,
along with reasonable rest periods to rejuvenate.

Safe working environment: The workplace ensures safety with proper lighting, good
ventilation, and risk prevention measures (fire safety, electrical safety, and accident
prevention).

Holiday bonuses: Employees receive bonuses during holidays, such as Tet.

Reward system: The company has clear policies for rewarding employees who
demonstrate outstanding performance.

Employee training

The average number of training hours per year, according to the staff and classified staff
Management level: 250 hours per employee

Employee level: 150 hours per employee

14
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- The skills development and continuous learning program to support workers
employment and career development

Training on applying Artificial Intelligence (Al)-in-daily work:

Guidance on using Base software to optimize work efficiency.

Training on building the BSC (Balanced Scorecard) system and KPIs for the company.
Courses on effective work planning.

Training on digital transformation in the enterprise.

Developing management and leadership skills.

Guidance on human resource management in the business environment.

+ + + 4+ 4+ 4+ + +

Training on strategic thinking in human resources within the company.

+ Courses on interview and candidate recruitment skills.

+ Training on corporate finance and budget management.

6.7. Report on responsibility for local community

- On September 14, 2024, at the 10/3 Square, Buon Ma Thuot City, Dak Lak Province,
Bao Ngoc had the honor of partnering with the event organizers for the Mid-Autumn
Festival. Bao Ngoc donated 100 mooncakes to children, hoping that these gifts would
light up their Mid-Autumn night. '

# On September 16, 2024, Bao Ngoc had a truly memorable experience as they, together

with DIVO Tung Duong, visited the Hanoi Center for Disabled Children. There, Bao

Ngoc brought joy and laughter to the children through a gift-giving and mooncake-

cutting program. The special gifts from Bao Ngoc were handed out to the children with

the hope that they would bring happiness and motivation to their lives. Additionally,

team games and cultural performances, with the participation of DIVO Tung Duong,

created a joyful and warm atmosphere, helping the children enjoy a complete Mid-

Autumn experience.

. On September 17, 2024, Bao Ngoc continued its journey of love by visiting the Vietnam
Friendship Village at 304 Xuan Phuong Street, Nam Tiur Liém, Hanoi, to deliver Mid-
Autumn gifts to 120 children affected by Agent Orange. This meaningful activity
brought joy and solidarity to these special circumstances, showing the children the care
and love of the community. Bao Ngoc hopes to alleviate some of their pain and bring joy
and encouragement to them, helping them find strength to overcome challenges. Each
gift symbolizes love and encouragement, hoping that the children will always receive
more wonderful things in the future.

- On September 29, 2024, Bao Ngoc was honored to become one of the main sponsors for
the 66th regular opening ceremony at the National Economics University, with a
donation of 100 million VND. This is a practical action that shows strong support and

15
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6.8.

partnership with the university in the journey of training and developing talent for the
country. This donation not only provides financial support but also affirms Bao Ngoc's
social responsibility and commitment. to promoting education and developing.human.
resources for the future.

With the motto "Sharing love, connecting communities," Bao Ngoc always prioritizes
social responsibility in its business activities. In response to the severe damage caused
by Storm No. 3, the company launched a donation campaign to provide essential gifts to
the affected regions. Specifically, Bao Ngoc contributed:

50,000,000 VND in cash directly to the Vietnam Fatherland Front Committee to assist
with rescue and reconstruction activities following the disaster.

Over 40,000 fresh bread loaves from Bao Ngoc’s quality products, sent to people in
flood-hit areas, to bring small joys during these difficult times.

Over 4,000 medical units to help with healthcare for those affected, ensuring their
protection against health issues during this emergency.

400 mooncakes for children in Yen Trinh Village, Hoang Van Thu, Chuong My, Hanoi,
who were affected by the floods.

On September 30, 2024, Bao Ngoc continued its charitable activities by distributing gifts
to people in the Sdn Chai commune, Simacai district, Lao Cai province, one of the areas
severely affected by Storm No. 3. In this program, Bao Ngoc donated:

4, 000 cakes, worth 20 million VND, to support the nutrition of affected families.

2,000 medical units, worth 50 million VND, to help protect health and assist the people
in their recovery efforts after the storm.

In addition, the company continues to maintain charitable activities such as giving gifts
to patients, homeless people, and building schools for children in mountainous areas.
Report on green capital market activities under the guidance of the ssc. No
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III. REPORTS AND ASSESSMENTS OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

L

b)

Assessment of operating results

n 2024, the Board of General Directors has fully carried ouf ifs functions and duties in
accordance with the law and the company’s charter, strictly adhering to the Resolutions
of the General Shareholders' Meeting and the Board of Directors. The Board of General
Directors has maintained regular meetings to provide timely direction and propose
effective solutions. Through Board meetings, the Board of General Directors reported on
the company’s production and business situation and proposed appropriate policy
solutions to address challenges. At the same time, the Board of General Directors
proactively developed business scenarios and investment plans to optimize the
company’s operational effectiveness..

2024 Business Performance Results:
Unit: Million VND
Indicator 2023 2024 Plan 2024 % Change | % of2024
Actual Actual 2024/2023 Plan
Revenue 1,448,469 | 1,680,000 | 1,740,538 20% 104%
Net Profit After Tax | 44,356 68,000 54,351 23% 79%

Revenue in 2024 reached 1,740,538 million VND, a 20% increase compared to 2023 and
4% higher than the 2024 target. This positive result indicates that the company
successfully implemented its expansion and revenue growth strategy.

Net Profit After Tax reached 54,351 million VND, a 23% increase compared to 2023,
but only achieved 79% of the 2024 target. Despite strong revenue growth, profits fell
short of expectations due to some cost factors not being well-controlled.

Factors Affecting the 2024 Business Results:

The company shifted from a broad market coverage strategy to a more focused customer
care approach, proactively reducing low-revenue, high-cost sales points while
concentrating on high-potential, low-cost outlets. Additionally, the company increased
the number of SKUs at key sales locations to boost revenue per location.

The company continued to develop and invest in new product lines such as fresh bread,
sandwich bread, kisshu bread, burgers, and exported cashew nuts. This not only
diversified its product range but also expanded its consumer market.

The company made significant efforts to boost revenue during key periods such as Tet
and Mid-Autumn festivals, ensuring a stable revenue stream throughout the year.
Despite strong revenue growth, the profit fell short of expectations due to the company’s
inability to optimally manage material costs, production costs, and marketing expenses.
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These rising costs negatively impacted profitability, leading to a gap between actual
profits and the set targets.

Opwerall, the Board of Management has taken effective steps to expand the business and _. ...
grow revenue. However, to achieve the profit targets, the company needs to enhance its

cost control capabilities in areas such as raw materials, production, operations, and
marketing. This is a key factor to ensure sustainability and efficiency in the company's

business operations in the coming years.

2. Financial Situation

2.1. Assets
As of December 31, 2024, the company's total assets reached 1,617,193 million VND,
representing a 45% increase compared to 2023. This increase is mainly due to
investments in fixed assets by the subsidiaries, with Bao Ngoc Southern Investment Co.,
Ltd. acquiring 5,010 m? of land at Vinh L§c Industrial Park, and Bao Ngoc Northern Co.,
Ltd. acquiring factories and office buildings at a small and medium-sized industrial
cluster in Tir Liém, especially the land purchase in Vinh Loc (Bao Ngoc Southern Co.)
and other real estate projects.

- Short-term assets increased by 28%, reaching 1,210,576 million VND, indicating that
the company has improved the efficiency of'its current assets to support ongoing business
activities.

. Long-term assets surged by 141%, reaching 406,616 million VND, primarily due to the
increase in fixed assets from investments in real estate and facilities, which will enhance

production capacity and expand the company's scale. '
Unit: Million VND

Indicator 2023 (Million 2024 (Million % Change
VND) VND)
Total Assets 1,115,696 1,617,193 45%
Current Assets 946,686 1,210,576 28%
Non-Current Assets 169, 009 406,616 141%
Equity 480,077 539,065 12%

2.2. Debt Payable

. The company's liabilities increased by 70%, from 635,618 million VND to 1,078,128
million VND, primarily due to investments in fixed assets, which is a reasonable strategy
for the long term. However, the company has used borrowed capital effectively to drive
growth.
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Indicator 2023 (Million 2024 (Million
_ % Change
VND) VND)
Liahilities. .« ceemsm ol 635,618 LOT8128 . 70%

- Regarding overdue debts, the company is currently managing them well and continues to
closely monitor the debts to ensure that they do not affect cash flow and payment ability.

- Interest Impact: The increase in borrowing interest rates may lead to higher financial
costs, directly impacting profitability. However, since the company has no foreign
currency loans, fluctuations in exchange rates do not significantly affect business results.

3.  Improvements in organizational structure, policies, and management.

. In 2024, the company undertook a significant restructuring of its organizational structure
to align with its development strategy and market demands. The restructuring of human
resources and the rearrangement of departments helped optimize work efﬁciency,
ensuring flexibility and synchronization throughout the organization. As a result, the
productivity and quality of work in each department have been enhanced.

5 In particular, the company has accelerated the adoption of technology in management
and production processes to automate workflows, improve data storage and management,
and enhance information analysis capabilities. This has optimized daily operations,
improved decision-making, and facilitated communication between departments within
the company.

- Additionally, the company has applied Al in management activities and business
strategies, helping to analyze customer data, forecast market demand, and adjust sales
strategies accordingly. The use of technology in management has allowed the company
to reduce operating costs, optimize resources, and improve work efficiency.

4.  Development plans in fut
The company will focus on improving quality and efficiency in business, while achieving
the goals of increasing revenue, profit, and cash flow. Specific strategies include:

- 'Revenue growth through market expansion, developing new products, and improving
sales activities.

< Improving cost management efficiency and optimizing operational processes to increase
profitability.

. Strengthening cash flow management, ensuring the company maintains liquidity and has
the resources to carry out strategic investment projects in the future.
The company will continue to pursue a sustainable development strategy, taking a

dvantage of market opportunities to expand and strengthen its position in the industry.
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5.

6.2.

6.3.

Explanation of the Board of Management for Auditor’s Opinions: The auditor’s
opinion is an unqualified opinion.

Assessment Report related to environmental and social responsibilities of the Company
Assessment concerning the environmental indicators (water consumption, energy,
emissions, etc.). | '

The company is committed to fully complying with environmental laws and regulations.
Production activities are carried out with an awareness of energy and fuel conservation,
including optimizing production processes, using energy-efficient equipment, and
training employees on energy-saving measures..

Assessment concerning the labor issues

The company fully implements policies and benefits for employees, including social and
health insurance, regular health check-ups, and other welfare benefits. Training and
extracurricular activities are regularly organized to ensure the physical and mental well-
being of employees.

Assessment concerning the corporate responsibility for the local community

In 2024, the company actively participated in community activities, organized charitable
programs, and contributed to the development of the community, demonstrating a strong
social responsibility and commitment to supporting those in difficult circumstances.
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IV. ASSESSMENTS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE COMPANY’S

b)

OPERATION (FOR JOINT STOCK COMPANIES

Assessments of the Board of Directors on the Company’s operation, including the
assessment related to environmental and social responsibilities.
The Board of Directors has closely supervised and directed the compaﬁy's business
operations in 2024. Specifically, the Board closely monitored the revenue and profit
situation, directly instructing the Executive Board and management personnel to
implement the resolutions of the General Shareholders' Meeting (GMS) and the Board
of Directors (BOD) in various areas and operations of the company. The company has
successfully and effectively executed development strategies and investment projects.
Két qua hoat dong san xuét kinh doanh:

Unit: Million VND

Indicator Actual 2024 Plan | Actual % Change %
2023 2024 2024/2023 | Achieve
ment/Pla
n 2024
Revenue 1,448,469 | 1,680,000 | 1,740,538 20% 104%
Net Profit 44,356 68,000 54,351 23% 79%

Revenue in 2024 reached 1,740 billion VND, a 20% increase compared to 2023 and 4%
higher than the 2024 plan, indicating that the company has achieved positive growth and
maintained its competitiveness.

Net profit after tax reached 54,351 million VND, an increase of 23% compared to 2023,
but it only achieved 79% of the 2024 target, showing that the company still faces
challenges in cost control and meeting profit goals.

Environmental and Social Responsibility:

The Board of Directors also focuses on ensuring that the company operates sustainably
and responsibly with regard to both society and the environment. The compaﬁy has
implemented environmental protection measures in its production activities and made
positive contributions to the community, helping to maintain the image of a socially and
environmentally responsible business. New product development projects and
infrastructure expansion are carried out in compliance with environmental regulations,
while also creating jobs and improving the livelihoods of the community..

Board of Directors' Evaluation

The Board of Directors highly appreciates the efforts and contributions of the Executive
Board in ensuring the efficiency of business operations. However, the company still
needs to pay more attention to cost control in order to achieve the profit goals set. At the
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same time, the company will continue to maintain and enhance its socially and
environmentally responsible activities in its sustainable development strategy..

2. Assessment of Board of Directors on Board of Management s performance

In 2024, the Board of Executives made significant and decisive contributions to the
company’s business results and growth. Thfoughout the year, the Board of Executives
made considerable efforts in management, directly implementing the strategic directions
of the General Shareholders’ Meeting (GMS) and the instructions from the Board of
Directors (BOD). They strictly adhered to the regulations, operational principles, and
practices in financial management, project management, investment, sales, cost
management, and organizational personnel.

Plans and orientations of the Board of Directors

(5]

Company's Development Orientation:

Invest to strengthen and diversify products, leverage the Bao Ngoc brand advantage since
1986 and the production capabilities of leading suppliers to develop competitive product
lines in the confectionery market, gradually expanding across the country and competing
in the market share of essential food products.

Develop new high-tech products to serve emerging consumer trends in the Vietnamese
market, with the goal of leading niche markets in the food industry.

Expand the development of new industrial fresh bakery products

V. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1.  Board of Directors

a) Members and structure of the Board of Directors

No. | Board of Directors Title Voting Share Number of

Member List Ownership Positions Held

Percentage and by Board

Other Securities | Members at
Issued by the Other
Company (%) Companies

Chairman of the

1 Le Duc Thuan 36.06 2
Board
Tran Xuan Vinh Board Member 1.25 1
3 | Nguyen Trung Hieu Board Member 0.0005 0
Independent Board

4 Dang Minh Quang 0 1

Member
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b)
c)

The committees of the Board of Directors: No
Activities of the Board of Directors

- The Board of Directors of the Company consists of 04 members, all of whom are highly:.-

skilled and experienced in the fields of finance, economics, business management, and
law. In 2024, the Board effectively performed its role of directing and overseeing,
particularly in guiding and developing business plans focused on digital transformation
and the development of three core business pillars. The Board also played an advisory
role for the Executive Board in formulating business strategies, investment plans, and
solutions for the Company’s development to strengthen its position in the market.
The Board successfully held the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on June 28,
2024, where it reported and sought the opinions of the General Assembly on matters
under the authority of the General Assembly. The meeting was organized in accordance
with the regulations of the Enterprise Law, the Company’s Charter, and other relevant
regulations for listed companies. The Board directed the CEO to implement the issues
approved in the Annual General Meeting Resolution for 2024.
In 2024, the Board organized both regular and extraordinary meetings to discuss,
exchange, and resolve issues related to the Company’s operations and organization. All
meetings were conducted in compliance with the Company’s Charter and the Enterprise
Law.
Attendance record for the Board of Directors meetings.
No Board of BOD Number of BOD | Attendance | Reason of Absence
members meetings attended rate
Le Duc Thuan 18/18 100%
Tran Xuan Vinh 18/18 100%

Dang Minh Quang 18/18 100%
Nguyen Trung Hieu 18/18 100%

Bl b | —

Resignation letter
from Board of

5 Bui Thanh Huong 0/7 0% Directors from
February 15, 2024

Board of Directors Resolution Table

No

Resolution No Date Appro | Content
val
Rate

Dismissal of Ms. Bui Thi Thanh |
01/2024/NQ - HDQT | 15/1/2024 | 100% | o0 © V& P4 20

Huong from the position of General
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No | Resolution No Date Appro | Content
val
Rate
Director
Appointment of Mr. Tran Xuan Vinh
02/2024/NQ-HPQT | 15/1/2024 | 1009 |* Ppomtment of M. fran Auan Vi
position CEO
A d dit 1 | t
03/2024/NQ-HDQT | 15/1/2024 |100% |- PProvec creat ‘oan plan 4
Vietinbank
Extension of Loan Limit Contract No.
VN123001244/2023-
03/2024/NQ-HPQT | 29/1/2024 | 100% -
QHDQ ° | HDCVHM/WBVN300 at Woori Bank
Vietnam Limited - Bac Ninh Branch
Approval ~ of  adjustment  of
tructi f Bao N
04/2024/NQ-HPQT | 1/2/2024 | 100% | “OPSTUcHon Progress of Hao Ngoc
Central Region Factory Investment
Project
Post t of the 2024 Annual
12/2024/NQ - HDQT | 26/4/2024 | 100% | > Ponement of te w
General Meeting of Shareholders
Organizing the 2024 Annual G 1
13/2024/NQ - HDQT | 09/5/2024 | 100% | = eori7ns te S
Meeting of Shareholders
Approving the selection of an auditing
14/2024/NQ HDQT— con.lpany to con-duct the semi-annual
BN 28/6/2024 | 100% | review and audit of the Company's
2024 separate and consolidated
financial statements.
15/2024/NQHDQT- : :
BN 12/7/2024 | 100% | Extend credit contract with VPBank
16/2024/NQHDQT- Appointment of the P in Ch
QHDQ 2072004 | 100% ppointment of the Person in Charge
BN of Corporate Governance
Approving the implementation of the
17/2024/NQHDQT 27/8/2024 | 100% | plan to issue shares to pay dividends in
2023
A 1 of the Credit Limit at
0608/2024/NQHDQT pprovat of the TAedlh LI A
- 6/8/2024 100% | Vietnam Prosperity Joint Stock

Commercial Bank
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No | Resolution No Date Appro | Content
val
Rate - Ie TN
A 1 of the Credit Limi
0808/2024/NQHPQT I?I?rova 0 e. rej 1t Limit at
BN 8/8/2024 100% | Military Commercial Joint Stock Bank
- Hoang Quoc Viet Branch
18/2024/NQHDQT- 27/8/2004 | 100% Approval credit limit at BIDV - Hanoi
BN Branch
19/2024/NQHBQT- 24192034 | 100% Gc?t credit at An Binh Commercial
BN Joint Stock Bank
Approval of transactions arising with
20/2024/NQHDQT- sangaE | 100% related party Bavigo Trading. J cTint
BN Stock Company - an organization
related to an insider
21/2024/NQHDQT- fﬂ&pproval of the subs.idiary's policy'to
BN 29/11/2024 | 100% | implement the Credit Contract with
Techcombank
22/2024/NQ-HDBQT- 10/12/2024 | 100% Register new charter capital and issue
BNA amendments to the Company's charter
23/2024/NQHDQT-
BN RHBQ 31/12/2024 | 100% | Appointment of Chief Accountant
24/2024/NQHDQT -
s NQHPQT - | 511212024 | 100% | Dismissal of Chief Accountant
d) Activities of the Board of Directors independent members

In 2024, the Independent Board Member monitored long-term strategies, ensured legal
compliance, and protected the interests of shareholders. The member participated in
important decisions of the Company while maintaining transparency in the Company’s
activities. '

The Independent Board Member successfully fulfilled the role of supervision,
protecting shareholder interests, especially those of minority shareholders, and ensuring
the Company complied with legal regulations. These activities helped strengthen
transparency and fairness in the company’s governance.

The list of members of the Board of Directors possessing certificates on corporate
gorvenance. The list of members of the Board of Directors participating in corporate
governance training programs in the year: No
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2.
a)

b)

Board of Supervisors
Members and structure of the Board of Supervisors

No. Name Position Ownership | Notes
Percentage
Head of S i
1 |Le Thi ThanhHuyen | oo O >upervisory 0%
Board
) Member of
2 | Nguyen Thi Huyen . 0%
Supervisory Board
. Member of
3 | Nguyen Cong Minh ) 0 %
Supervisory Board
Member of Resigned
4 | Duong Dac Lam FHber o 0% -
Supervisory Board 28/06/2024
Member of Resigned
5 | Le Van Tuan eTn i 0 % e
Supervisory Board 28/06/2024

Activities of the Board of Supervisors
In 2024, the Supervisory Board (SB) has carried out its supervision and inspection duties
over the activities of the Board of Directors (BOD) and the Executive Board in
accordance with its functions and authority, ensuring compliance with the legal

regulations and the company's charter.

Number of meetings: The SB organized 02 meetings in 2024.

Content of the meetings: The SB's meetings primarily focused on supervising the
activities of the BOD and the Executive Board, as well as ensuring that the company's
operations comply with legal regulations and the company's charter.

Information on the attendance of the Supervisory Board members at the meetings

No. Supervisory Board | Number | Attend Reason for Non-Attendance
Member of ance
Meeting | Rate
s
Attende
d
1 | Le Thi Thanh Huyen 02 100%
2 | Nguyen Thi Huyen 1 50% | Appointed on 28/06/2024
3 | Nguyen Cong Minh 1 50% | Appointed on 28/06/2024
4 | Duong Dac Lam 1 50% | Resigned on 28/06/2024
5 |Le Van Tuan 1 50% | Resigned on 28/06/2024

Supervision activities of the Supervisory Board over the Board of Directors (BOD)
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+ The BOD holds quarterly regular meetings and extraordinary meetings when necessary,
chaired by the Chairman of the BOD.
+ The BOD has-organized and directed the implementation-of-the resolutions passed by
the General Meeting of Shareholders.
+ The meetings of the BOD invite the Supervisory Board to attend, facilitating supervision
and inspection.
+ The company ensures that it reports and discloses information in accordance with
regulations.
- Supervision activities of the Supervisory Board over the Executive Board
+ The activities of the Executive Board have been conducted in accordance with its
functions, authority, and the current law, as well as the company's charter.
+ The Executive Board supervises and directs the company effectively, addressing
business issues promptly to ensure operational efficiency and safety.
3.  Transactions, remunerations and benefits of the Board of Directors, Board of
Management and Board of Supervisors
3.1. Salary, rewards, remuneration and benefits;
Year 2024 Year 2023
YND VND
Remuneratien to members of The Board of Management and 765,935,464 1,630,292,134
Mr Le due Thuan Chairman 130,000,000 150,060,000
Mr Tran Xuan Vinh Member 84,000,000 84,000,000
Murs Bui Thi Thanh Huong Member of Board of . 450,520,955
Directors cum General
Director (resigned)
Mr Nguoyen Trung Hien Member 447935464 264771179
Mr Dang Minh Quang Member 84,000,060 84,000,000
Remuneration fo members of Board of Supervision 486,676,280 192,676,371
Le Thi Thanh Huyen 208,370,280 -
Nguyen Cong Minh Member from 28/06/2024 24,000,000 "
Nguven Thi Huyen Member from 28/06/2024 126,306,000 -
Duong Dac Lam Member until 28/06/2024 24,000,000 102,271,525
Lg Van Tuan Member until 28/06/2024 24,000,060 50,404,846
3.2. Share transactions by internal shareholders :No
3.3. Contracts or transactions with internal shareholders:
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Through the use of assets owned by Mr. Lé Ptrc Thudn — Chairman of the Board of Directors
as collateral for the credit arrangement with Vietinbank, as approved by the Board of
Directors in Resolution No. 03/2024/NQ-HPQT dated January 15, 2024, the company has
publicly disclosed this information as of January 15, 2024,
3.4. Assessing the Implementation of regulations on corporate governance

The company has complied with the regulations on information disclosure and corporate
governance for public companies, while . also focusing on enhancing corporate
governance in accordance with the Law on Enterprises and Decree No. 155/2020/ND-
CP. Additionally, the company has planned to improve the governance capabilities of its
Board of Management to meet legal requirements as well as market demands.

VI. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Auditor’s opinions: The consolidated financial statements fairly and accurately reflect,
in all material respects, the financial position of Bao Ngoc Investment and Production
Group Joint Stock Company as of December 31, 2024, as well as the results of its
operations and cash flows for the fiscal year ending on December 31, 2024, in accordance
with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Vietnamese Corporate Accounting
Regulations, and the relevant legal provisions regarding the preparation and presentation
of consolidated financial statements..

2.  Audited financial statements

- The audited consolidated financial statements for 2024 are attached.

- The address for disclosing and providing the parent company's financial statements is
available on the company's website as of March 29, 2025, at the following link:
https://banhbaongoc.vn/, in the "Investor Relations — Financial Information" section.

Hanoi, April 17, 2025.

Recipients: O¥CONFIRMATION BY THE COMPANY’S LEGAL A
- BOD; CEO; BSC; REPRESENTATIV
- Save: HR. (Signature, full name and seal)

CHU TICH HP@1

. K L Lhudn

28



[ B S ——

——d

<))

2 YAk

(®)
=

il

W
" Q'\a\

-l e

BAO NGOC INVESTMENT GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2024

B



BAO NGOC INVESTMENT GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Bao Ngoc Building, Lot A2CN8 Tu Liem Industrial Park,
Phuong Canh Ward, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi

TABLE OF CONTENTS
CONTENTS PAGE
STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 02-03
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 04-05
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 06-07
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT 08
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 09-10
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 11-44

A0S0 AN



BAO NGOC INVESTMENT GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Bao Ngoc Building, Lot A2ZCN8 Tu Liem Industrial Park,
Phuong Canh Ward, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of Bao Ngoc Investment Group Joint Stock Company (“the Company”) presents this report
together with the Company’s Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024,

THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD OF SUPERVISION

The members of The Board of Management and The Board of Directors of the Company who held office during the
year and to the date of this report are as follows:

The Board of Management

Mr.  Le Duc Thuan Chairman

Mr.  Tran Xuan Vinh Member

Mr.  Dang Minh Quang Member

Mr. Nguyen Trung Hieu Member

Mrs. Bui Thi Thanh Huong Member Dismissed on 28/06/2024

The Board of Directors

Mr. Tran Xuan Vinh General Director Appointed on 28/06/2024
Mrs. Bui Thi Thanh Huong General Director Dismissed on 28/06/2024

Board of Supervision

Mrs. Le Thi Thanh Huyen Prefect

Mr.  Nguyen Cong Minh Member Appointed on 28/06/2024
Mrs. Nguyen Thi Huyen Member Appointed on 28/06/2024
Mrs. Duong Dac Lam Member Dismissed on 28/06/2024
Mrs. Le Van Tuan Member Dismissed on 28/06/2024

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for preparing the consolidated financial statements, which give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and of its results and cash flows for the year in accordance
with Vietnamese accounting standards, accounting regime for enterprises and legal regulations relating to consolidated
financial statements. In preparing these Consolidated financial statements, The Board of Directors is required to:

Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

State whether applicable accounting principles have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the Consolidated financial statements;

Prepare the Consolidated financial statements the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the Company will continue in business; and

Design and implement an effective internal control system for the purpose of properly preparing and presenting
the Consolidated financial statements so as to minimize errors and frauds.

NG ‘-(\

-
b=

s



L i Y 0 I r r 1 T

BAO NGOC INVESTMENT GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Bao Ngoc Building, Lot A2CN8 Tu Liem Industrial Park,
Phuong Canh Ward, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi

The Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept, which disclose, with
reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Company and that the consolidated financial statements
comply with Vietnamese accounting standards, accounting regime for enterprises and legal regulations relating to
consolidated financial statements. The Board of Directors is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of frauds and other irregularities.

The Board of Directors, confirms that the Company has complied with the above requirements in preparing these
Consolidated financial statements.

For and on behalf of The Board of Directors,

Le Duc Thuan /UV

Chairman

Ha Noi, March 26th, 2025

—_ =

Mo =



—

‘ ® Vietnam Auditing and Valuation Company Limited
, l Address: 14th Floor, SUDICO Building, Me Tri Street
‘ ’ My Dinh 1 Ward, South Tu Liem District, Hanoi, Vietnam
Tel: (+84 24) 3868 9566 / (+84 24) 3868 9588

Fax: (+84 24) 3868 6248
Web: kiemtoanava.com.vn

No.: 3% /BekT/TONVS
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To: Shareholders, The Board of Management and The Board of Directors
Bao Ngoc Investment Group Joint Stock Company

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of Bao Ngoc Investment Group Joint Stock
Company (the “Company”), prepared on March 26th, 2025, as set out from page 06 to page 44, including: Consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 December 2024, Consolidated income statement, Consolidated cash flows statement for the year
then ended and Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024,

The Board of Directors’ Responsibility

The Board of Directors responsible for the preparation of Consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and the
statutory requirements relevant to preparation and presentation of financial statements and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of Consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply
with standards, ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
Consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
Consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of Consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Auditor’s opinion

In our opinion, the Consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the financial
position of Bao Ngoc Investment Group Joint Stock Company as at 31 December 2024, and of the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2024 in accordance with the Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and the statutory requirements relevant to preparation and
presentation of consolidated financial statements.
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Other matter

The consolidated financial statements of Bao Ngoc Investment Group Joint Stock Company for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2023 were audited by TTP Auditing Company Limited with an unqualified audit opinion in Independent
Audit Report No. 187/BCKT-TC dated March 29, 2024. The basis for TTP Auditing Company Limited to give an
unqualified opinion on the Company's consolidated financial statements is that on February 9, 2023, the Company
transferred fixed assets, which are construction works on land at Lot A2 CN8 Tu Liem Industrial Park, Phuong Canh
Ward, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi City according to the Certificate of land use rights, house ownership rights and
other assets attached to land No. CO 899500 to Refrigeration Electrical Engineering Bach Khoa Co.Ltd, however, the
above transfer transaction has not been legally completed. In the Consolidated Financial Statements for the fiscal year
ending December 31, 2024, the Board of Directors decided to retroactively adjust a number of indicators related to the
transfer of this fixed asset.

Viet Nam Auditing and Valuation Company Limited

Nguyen Bao Trung Nguyen Xuan Hoang
Deputy General Director Auditor
Registered Auditor No: 0373-2023-126-1 Registered Auditor No: 4907-2024-126-1

Ha Noi, March 28th, 2023
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Park,
Phuong Canh Ward, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi

NVESTMENT GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2024

ASSETS

A.

IL.

I1.

L.JM._-<

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash
Cash equivalents

Short-term investments

Held to maturity investments

Short-term receivable
Short-term trade receivables

Short-term prepayments to suppliers
Other short-term receivables

. Inventories

Inventories

Other current assets

Short-term prepaid expenses

Deductible VAT

Taxes and other receivables from State budget

LONG-TERM ASSETS

Long-term receivables

Other long-term receivables

Fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets
Historical costs
Accumulated depreciation
Finance lease assets
Historical costs
Accumulated depreciation
Intangible fixed assets
Historical costs

Accumulated depreciation

. Long-term unfinished asset

Construction in progress

. Other long-term assets

Long-term prepaid expenses
Deferred tax assets
Good will

TOTAL ASSETS (270=100+200)

Code

100

110
1
112

120
123

130
131
132
136

140
141

150
15
152
153

200

260
261
262
269

270

Note

I3
22

31/12/2024

FORM B 01-DN
Unit: VND

01/01/2024
(Retrospective
restatement)

1,210,576,890,994

77,509,856,030
29,199,374,158
48,310,481,872

34,907,669,396
34,907,669,396

642,711,069,365
508,334,117,577
127,265,136,135

7,111,815,653

435,942,236,041
435,942,236,041

19,506,060,162
7,472,014,254
7,024,277,795
5,009,768,113

406,616,301,611

150,000,000
150,000,000

309,760,622,933
307,189,440,765
397,975,891,009
(90,786,450,244)

2,571,182,168
6,098,456,667
(3.527,274,499)

74,727,222,201
74,727,222,201

21,978,456,477
18,187,704,973
2,239,251,721
1,551,459,783

946,686,323,869

69,971,637,261
19,851,637,261
50,120,000,000

24,000,000,000
24,000,000,000

402,754,679,751
188,827,939,789
213,515,202,289

411,537,673

438,414,293,965
438,414,293,965

11,545,712,892
5,298,928,027
1,246,384,865
5,000,400,000

169,009,849,922

150,000,000
150,000,000

147,833,958,399
144,024,965,064
227,435,921,452
(83,410,956,388)
221,145,834
990,000,000
(768,854,166)
3,587,847,501
6,098,456,667
(2,510,609,166)

3,484,769,913
3,484,769,913

17,541,121,610
15,131,570,386
1,983,427,255
426,123,969

1,617,193,192,605

1,115,696,173,791
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Park,
Phuong Canh Ward, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi

NVESTMENT GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (Continued)
As at 31 December 2024

FORM B 01-DN

Unit: VND
01/01/2024
CAPITAL Code  Note 31/12/2024 (Retrospective
restatement)
C. LIABILITIES 300 1,078,128,069,878 635,618,419,038
I. Current liabilities 310 921,918,654,432 629,778,469,038
1. Short-term trade payables 311 17 135,366,643,165 91,018,311,346
2. Short-term advances from customers 312 18 55,686,258,635 56,753,444,018
3. ‘l'axes and other payables to State budget 313 19 19,640,640,695 24,895,455,311
4. Payables to employees 314 2,499,972,762 3,628,026,050
5. Short-term accrued expenses 315 - 438,279,632
6. Short-term unrealised revenue 318 878,181,818 -
7. Other short-term payables 319 20 817,448,942 162,194,443
8. Short-term loans and finance lease liabilities 320 21 705,672,388,520 452,882,758,238
9. Bonus and welfare fund 322 1,357,119,895 -
II. Long-term liabilities 330 156,209,415,446 5,839,950,000
. Other long-term payables 337 20 966,000,000 -
2, Long-term loans and finance lease liabilities 338 21 155,243,415,446 5.839,950,000
D. OWNER’S EQUITY 400 539,065,122,727 480,077,754,753
I.  Owner’s equity 410 23 539,065,122,727 480,077,754,753
1. Contributed capital 411 312,493,940,000 249,998,550,000
- Ordinary shares with voting rights 4lla 312,493,940,000 249,998,550,000
2. Share premium 412 79,978,400,000 79,978,400,000
3. Development investment funds 418 3.055,393,794 1,698,273,899
4.  Undistributed profit after tax 421 123,811,057,065 135,726,492,731
- Undistributed post-tax profits accumulated by the en 421a 70,623,398,962 91,935,549,404
- Undistributed profit after tax for the current period 421b 53,187,658,103 43,790,943,327
6. Non controlling interest 429 19,726,331,868 12,676,038’]23
TOTAL CAPITAL (440 = 300+ 400) 440 1,617,193,192,605  1,115,696,173,791
Lai Thi Thu Ha Dinh Thi Thuy Hanh Le Duc Thuan
Preparer Chief Accountant Chairman
Ha Noi, March 26th, 2025
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BAO NGOC INVESTMENT GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
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Park,
Phuong Canh Ward, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi

Consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Year 2024

FORM B 02-DN

Unit: VND

Year 2023
(Retroactively
adjusted)

1,740,538,474,234

14,476,875,988

1,448,469,697,669

15,862,831,877

1,726,061,598,246 1,432,606,865,792
1,541,863,196,853 1,269,690,772,321
184,198,401,393 162,916,093,471
8,243,435,292 3,703,986,685

41,394,698,582
38,254,618,355

50,434,702,841
29,024,692,406

71,587,742,856

2,190,137,161
4,153,962,335

(1,963,825,174)
69,623,917,682

15,528,721,140

35,099,847,238
33,562,518,427

43,926,801,998
24,548,278,112

63,045,152,808

9,761,112
5,340,096,129

(5,330,335,017)
57,714,817,791

13,912,290,570

ITEM Code Note
1. Revenue from sales and services rendered 01 24
2.  Revenue deductions 02 25
3. Net revenue from sales and services rendered 10
(10-01-02)
4. Cost of goods sold 11 26
5. Gross profit from sales and services rendered 20
(20=10-11)
6. Financial income 21 27
7. Financial expenses 22 28
In which: Interest expenses 23
8. Profit or loss in joint ventures and associates 24 0
9, Selling expenses 25 29
10. General and administration expenses 26 30
11. Net profit from operating activities 30
(30=20+(21-22)+24-(25+26))
12. Other income 31 31
13. Other expenses 32 32
14. Other profit (loss) 40
(40=31-32)
15. Total profit before tax 50
(50=30+40)
16. Current corporate income tax expenses 51 33
17. Deferred corporate income tax expenses 52
18. Profit after corporate income tax 60
(60=50-51-52)
19. Profit after tax attributable to shareholders of 61
the parent
20. Profit after tax attributable to non-controlling 62
interests
21, Basic earnings per share 70
) g /,L/,_//{)!C:q
{ DQ//
Lai Thi Thu Ha Dinh Thi Thuy Hanh
Preparer Chief Accountant
8

(255,864.466) (554,167,273)
54,351,061,008 44,356,694,494
53,187,658,103 43,790,943,327

1,163,402,905 565,751,167

1,752

Luc Thuan

Chairman
Ha Noi, March 26th, 2025
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BAO NGOC INVESTMENT GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Bao Ngoc Building, Lot A2ZCN8 Tu Liem Industrial Park,
Phuong Canh Ward, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi

Consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2024
(Under indirect method)

e

e Ka Od

FORM B 03-DN
Unit: VND
Year 2023
ITEM Code Year 2024 (Retroactively
adjusted)
I. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
1. Profit before tax 01 69,623,917,682 57,714,817,791
2. Adjustments for
- Depreciation of fixed assets and investment 02 17,353,165,121 16,187,781,126
properties
- Gains of exchange rate differences from 04 1,096,690,018 -
revaluation of accounts derived from foreign
- Gains/losses from investment 05 (4,562,126,515) (1,268,520,662)
- Interest expense 06 38,254,618,355 33,562,518,427
- Other adjustments 07 - (13,068,181)
3. Profit from operating activities before changes 08 121,766,264,661 106,183,528,501
in working capital
- Increase/decrease in receivables 09 (202,743,129,810) (124,726,857,007)
- Increase/decrease in inventory 10 2,472,057,924 (34,417,668,941)
- Increase/decrease in payables (excluding interest 11 36,001,036,381 94,156,344,641
payables, enterprise income tax payables)
- Increase/decrease in prepaid expenses 12 (5,229,220.814) 830,916,798
- Interest expenses paid 14 (38,254,618,355) (33,124,238,796)
- Corporate income tax paid 15 (13,376,971,143) (16,003,145,032)
- Other receipts from operating activities 16 993,000,000 -
- Other expenses on operating activities 17 (483,925,780) -
Net cash flows from operating activities 20 (98,855,506,936) (7,101,119,836)

II. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

. Purchase of fixed assets and other long-term 21 (224,857,960,266) (26,181,813,980)
assets

2. Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets and 22 17,609,830,000 -
other long-term assets

3. Loans to other entities and purchase of debt 23 (21,231,835,032) (648,000,000)
instruments of other entities

4.  Collection of loans and resale of debt instrument 24 10,324,165,636 10,000,000
of other entities ;

5. Equity investments in other entities 25 (80,013,912,593) (4,521,812,554)

6. Interest and dividend received 27 2,396,558.635 1,268,520,662

Net cash flows from investing activities 30 (295,773,153,620) (30,073,105,872)

III. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

. Proceeds from borrowings 33 1,860,208,023,039 1,210,699,544,707

2. Repayment of principal 34 (1,457,827,806,311)  (1,112,774,131,506)

3. Repayment of financial principal 35 (187,121,000) (187,121,000)

Net cash flows from financing activities 40 402,193,095,728 97,738,292,201
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BAO NGOC INVESTMENT GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Bao Ngoc Building, Lot A2CN8 Tu Liem Industrial Park,

Phuong Canh Ward, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi

Consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2024
(Under indirect method)

ITEM

Net cash flows within the year (50=20+30+40)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Impact of foreign exchange fluctuation

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year
(70=50+60+61)

o

Code

50

60

61

70

FORM B 03-DN

Unit: VND

Year 2023

Year 2024 (Retroactively
adjusted)

7,564,435,172 60,564,066,493
69,971,637,261 9,407,399,768
(26,216,403) 171,000

77,509,856,030

69,971,637,261

Lai Thi Thu Ha
Preparer

Dinh Thi Thuy Hanh
Chief Accountant

Le Duc Thuan
Chairman

Ha Noi, March 26th, 2025
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BAO NGOC INVESTMENT GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Bao Ngoc Building, Lot A2ZCN8 Tu Liem Industrial Park,
Phuong Canh Ward, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi

Consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

FORM B 09-DN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Consolidated financial
statements

1

. CHARACTERISTICS OF OPERATION OF THE COMPANY

Form of capital ownership

Bao Ngoc Investment Group Joint Stock Company was established and operated under the Certificate of Business
Registration of Joint Stock Company No. 0105950129 issued by the Hanoi Department of Planning and
Investment for the first time on July 23, 2012, registered for the 17th change on 17 December 2024,

The Company’s head office is located at: Bao Ngoc Building, Lot A2CN8 Tu Liem Industrial Park, Phuong Canh
Ward, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi.

The Company's registered charter capital is VND 312,493,940,000, the actual contributed charter capital as of 31
December 2024 is VND 312,493,940,000; equivalent to 31,249,394 shares, the par value of one share is VND
10,000.

Business field

Business field of the Company is: production and trading of cakes.
Business activities

Main business activities of the Company is:
- Production of bakery products from flour, production of sugar, cocoa, chocolate and confectionery;

- Manufacture of pasta, noodles and similar products, prepared meals;
- Wine production, beer production and malting;
- Wholesale rice, wholesale food, restaurants and mobile catering services;

- Other retail in general stores, retail of food, beverages, and tobacco accounts for a large proportion in general
stores; '
- Other remaining business support service activities not elsewhere classified.

Structure of the Group

The total number of subsidiaries: 4
- Direct consolidated: 3

- Indirect consolidated: 1

The Company’s subsidiaries have consolidated in Consolidated Financial Statements as at 31/12/2024

Proportion Voting
Name of company Head office of rights held by ~ Main business activities
Bao Ngoc Northern Investment and Ha Noi 90.00% 90.00% Confectionery production
Production Company Limited
Bao Ngoc Southern Investment and Ho Chi Minh 96.72% 96.72% Confectionery production
Production Joint Stock Company City y
Thanh Nam Import Export Binh Phuoc 49.33% 51.00%  Cashew production and
Production Joint Stock Company export
Bao An Ha Nam Import Export Trading Ha Nam 99.00% 99.00% Manufacturing plastic
Company Limited (*) products

11
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BAO NGOC INVESTMENT GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Bao Ngoc Building, Lot A2CN8 Tu Liem Industrial Park, Consolidated financial statements
Phuong Canh Ward, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi For the year ended 31 December 2024

FORM B 09-DN
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Consolidated financial
statements

(*) On 15 February 2024, Bao Ngoc Production Investment Joint Stock Company invested in Bao An Ha Nam
Trading Import-Export Company Limited with an amount of VND 99,000,000,000, direct holding ratio of 99%.

2 . ACCOUNTING PERIOD AND ACCOUNTING CURRENCY
Annual accounting period commences from 1st January and ends as at 3 1st December.
The Company maintains its accounting records in VND.

3 .STANDARDS AND APPLICABLE ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Applicable accounting policies

The Company applies Enterprise Accounting System issued under Circular No. 200/2014/QD-BTC dated 22
December 2014 amended and supplemented in accordance with Circular No. 53/2016/TT-BTC dated 21 March
2016 of the Minister of Finance.

Declaration of compliance with accounting standards and accounting system

The Company applies Vietnamese Accounting Standards and supplement documents issued by the State. Financial
statements are prepared in accordance with regulations of each standard and supplement documents as well as with
current Accounting Standards and Accounting System. '

4 . SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies, which have been adopted by the Company in the preparation of these financial
statements, are as follows:

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, accounting regime
for enterprises and legal regulations relating to financial reporting requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the fiscal year.
Although these accounting estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge, actual results may differ
from those estimates.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and enterprises
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries) up to 31 December each year. Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an investee enterprise so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Consistent accounting policies are applied in Financial Statements of subsidiaries and the Company. Where

necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used in
line with those used by the Company.

12
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BAO NGOC INVESTMENT GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Bao Ngoc Building, Lot A2CN8 Tu Liem Industrial Park, Consolidated financial statements
Phuong Canh Ward, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi For the year ended 31 December 2024

FORM B 09-DN
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Consolidated financial
statements

Intragroup transactions and balances are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests represents the portion of profit or loss and net assets of subsidiaries not held by the
Company. Non-controlling interests consist of the amount of those non-controlling interests at the date of the
original business combination and the non-controlling interests’ share of changes in equity since the date of the
combination. Losses in subsidiaries are respectively attributed to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s interest in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of a subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled entity at the
date of acquisition. Goodwill is recognised as an asset and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated
period of benefit of 10 years. ,

On disposal of a subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled entity, the attributable amount of unamortised goodwill
is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Negative goodwill

Negative goodwill represents the excess of the Company’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of a subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled entity at the date of acquisition
over the cost of acquisition. Negative goodwill is immediately recognised in the income statement at the
acquisition date.

Business combinations

On acquisition, the assets and liabilities and contingent liabilities of a subsidiary are measured at their fair values
at the date of acquisition. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recognised as goodwill. Any deficiency of the cost of acquisition below the fair values of the
identifiable net assets acquired is credited to profit and loss in the period of acquisition. 3

The non-controlling interests are initially measured at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportion of the net fair
value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.

Financial Instruments

Initial recognition

Financial assets: At the date of initial recognition, financial assets are recognised at cost plus transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets. Financial assets of the Company comprise
cash, cash equivalents,trade and other receivables, deposits, financial investments and derivative financial
instruments.

Financial liabilities: At the date of initial recognition financial liabilities are recognised at cost plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial liabilities. Financial liabilities of the Company
comprise trade and other payables, accrued expenses, obligations under finance leases, borrowings and derivative
financial instruments.

s S R



BAO NGOC INVESTMENT GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Bao Ngoc Building, Lot A2CNS8 Tu Liem Industrial Park, Consolidated financial statements
Phuong Canh Ward, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi For the year ended 31 December 2024
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FORM B 09-DN
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Consolidated financial
statements

Foreign currency transactions

The foreign currency transactions during the fiscal year are converted into Vietnam dong with the real exchange

rate at the transaction date. Real exchange rates are determined as the following principles:

- When buying or selling foreign currency: are exchange rates concluded in contracts of foreign exchange sale
between Company and commercial banks;

- When capital contribution or receipt of contributed capital: are exchange rate of purchase of foreign currency
of the bank where Company opens the account to receive capital from investors at the date of the contribution
of capital;

- When recording receivables: are exchange rates of purchase of commercial banks where Company assigned
customers to make payment at the time of incurred transactions;

- When recording liabilities: are exchange rates of purchase of commercial banks where Company expects to
conduct transactions at the time of incurred transactions;

- When purchases of assets or expenses paid immediately in foreign currency: are the rate of purchase of
commercial banks where Company makes payments.

Real exchange rate upon re-determining accounts derived from foreign currenciesat the date of the Consolidated

financial statements determined on the following principles:

- For accounts classifies as asset: applies exchange rates of purchase of commercial banks where Company
regularly conducts transaction;

- For foreign currency deposited in bank: applies exchange rate of purchase of the bank where Company opens
foreign currency accounts;

- For accounts classified as liabilities: applies exchange rates of selling foreign currency of commercial banks
where Company regularly conducts transaction.

All sums of real exchange rates for foreign currency transactions in the year and real exchange rate upon re-
determining accounts derived from foreign currencies at the end of the year are recorded immediately to results of
business operations in accounting year.

Real exchange rates for foreign currency transactions in year and real exchange rate upon re-determining accounts
derived from foreign currencies at the end of the year recorded accumulated on the Statement of Financial position
and are gradually allocate into financial expense or financial income as enterprises operate. Allocation of
minimum loss on foreign exchange in each year must ensure that it is not less than the pre-tax profit before
allocation of loss on foreign exchange (after allocation of loss on foreign exchange, pre-tax profit of Statement of
Comprehensive income shall be zero).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

Financial investments

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments comprise investments that the Company has the positive intent or ability to hold to
maturity, including term deposits (commercial bills), bonds, preference shares which the issuer shall redeem at a
certain date in the future, loans held to maturity to earn periodic interest and other held-to-maturity investments.
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BAO NGOC INVESTMENT GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Bao Ngoc Building, Lot A2CN8 Tu Liem Industrial Park, Consolidated financial statements
Phuong Canh Ward, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi For the year ended 31 December 2024

FORM B 09-DN
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Consolidated financial
statements

Held-to-maturity investments are recognised on a trade date basis and are initially measured at acquisition price
plus directly attributable transaction costs. Post-acquisition interest income from held-to-maturity investments is
recognised in the income statement on accrual basis. Pre-acquisition interest is deducted from the cost of such
investments at the acquisition date. g

Receivables

Receivables represent the amounts recoverable from customers or other debtors and are stated at book value less
provision for doubtful debts.

The provision for doubtful debts is made for receivables that are overdue under an economic contract, a loan
agreement, a contractual commitment or a promissory note and for receivables that are not due but difficult to be
recovered. Accordingly, the provisions for overdue debts shall be based on the due date stipulated in the initial
sale contract, exclusive of the debt rescheduling between contracting parties and the case where the debts are not
due but the debtor is in bankruptey, in dissolution, or missing and making fleeing.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials and where

applicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their
. . . . . . !

present location and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable value

represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs to completion and costs to be incurred in marketing,
selling and distribution.

The cost of inventory is calculated by weighted average method.
Inventory is recorded by perpetual method.

Method for valuation of work in process at the end of the year:
- Work in progress is obtained based on actual cost incurred for each kind of unfinished products.

The evaluation of necessary provision for inventory obsolescence follows current prevailing accounting
regulations which allow provisions to be made for obsolete, damaged, or sub-standard inventories and for those
which have costs higher than net realisable values as at the balance sheet date.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

The costs of purchased tangible fixed assets comprise their purchase prices and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the assets to their working condition and location for their intended use.

The costs of self-constructed or manufactured assets are the actual construction or manufacturing cost plus
installation and test running costs.

13
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BAO NGOC INVESTMENT GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY
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Bao Ngoc Building, Lot A2CN8 Tu Liem Industrial Park, Consolidated financial statements
Phuong Canh Ward, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi For the year ended 31 December 2024
FORM B 09-DN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS '

These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Consolidated financial
Statements

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over their following estimated useful live:

- Buildings 05-44  years
- Machine, equipment 03-15  years
- Transportation equipment 06-10  years
- Office equipment and furniture 03-10  years
- Others property 05-10  years
Leasing

A lease is classified as a finance lease when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are
transferred to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Company at their fair value at the incepti::m of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability. Finance charges are charged to profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying
assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the Company’s general policy on borrowing costs.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease
term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives, as follows:

- Machine, equipment 05-44  years
Intangible assets and amortisation

The cost of intangible fixed assets includes all costs incurred by the Company to acquire the fixed assets up to the
time the asset is ready for use. Expenses related to intangible fixed assets incurred afier initial recognition ‘are
recognized as production and business expenses in the period, unless these expenses are associated with a specific
intangible fixed asset and increase the economic benefits from these assets.

Software program

Costs relating to computer software programs that are not part of the related hardware are capitalized. The cost of
computer software is the total cost incurred by the Company up to the date the software is put into use. Computer
software is amortized on a straight-line basis over a period of 03 to 05 years.

Land use rights

Intangible assets represent land use rights that are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation. Land use rights are
amortised using the straight-line method over the duration of the right to use the land.

Construction in progress

Properties in the course of construction for production, rental or administrative purposes, or for other purposes, are
carried at cost. Cost includes professional fees, and for qualifying assets, borrowing costs dealt with in accordance
with the Company’s accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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Statements

Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses are expenses which have already been paid but relate to results of operations of multiple
accounting periods, including land rentals, establishment costs and other types of long-term prepayments.

Land rentals represent rentals that have been paid in advance. Prepaid land rentals are charged to the income
statement using the straight-line method over the lease term.

Other types of long-term prepaid expenses comprise costs of small tools, supplies and spare parts issued for
consumption, advertising expenditures and training costs incurred during the pre-operating stage which are
expecled to provide future economic benefits to the Company. These expenditures have been capitalised as long-
term prepayments, and are allocated to the income statement using the straight-line method in accordance with the
current prevailing accounting regulations.

Payables

The payables shall be kept records in details according to period payables, entities payables, types of currency
payable and other factors according to requirements for management of the Company.

Loans and finance lease liabilities

The value of finance lease liabilities is the total payable amount calculated on the present value of minimum lease
payments or the fair value of leased assets.

Loans and finance lease liabilities shall be kept records in details according to entities loans, loan agreement and
loans and finance lease liabilities term. In case of loans or liabilities in foreign currency shall be kept records in
detail the currency.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognized into operating costs in the year, except for which directly attributable to the
construction or production of unfinished asset included (capitalized) in the cost of that asset, when gather
sufficient conditions as regulated in VAS No. 16 “Borrowing costs”. Beside, regarding loans serving the
construction of fixed assets, investment properties, and the interests shall be capitalized even if the construction
duration is under 12 months.

Owner’s equity
Owner’s equity is stated at actually contributed capital of owners.

Share premium shall record the difference between the par value, direct costs related to the issuing shares and
issue price of shares (including the case of re-issuing stock fund) and can be a positive premium (if the issue price
is higher than par value and direct costs related to the issuance of shares) or negative premium (if the issue price is
lower than par value and direct costs related to the issuance of shares).

Other capital shall record operating capital set up additionally from the result of business activities or given as
gifts, presents, financing and asset revaluation (if these items are allowed to record a decrease or increase in
investment capital).
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Undistributed profit after tax is used to record business results (profit, loss) after corporate income tax and
situation of income distribution or loss handling of company. The distribution of profits are made when the
undistributed profit after tax of company shall not exceed the undistributed profit after tax on Consolidated
Financial Statements after eliminating the impact of profits recorded from cheap purchase. In case payment of
dividends, profits for the owners exceeding the undistributed profit after tax shall be essentially decrease of
contributed capital. Undistributed profit after tax can be distributed to investors based on capital contribution rate
after approval by General Meeting of Shareholders and after making appropriation to funds in accordance with the
Company’s Charter and Vietnamese regulatory requirements.

The Company’s retained earnings is distributed to other funds according to recommendation of the Board of
Management and approval of shareholders at annual General Meeting of Shareholders:

- Development and investment funds: The fund is reserved for The purpose of business expansion or in depth
investment.

- Bonus and welfare fund and bonus for the Board of Directors: The fund is reserved for the purpose of bonus,
material incentives, common benefit and increasing welfare for employees and presented as a liability on the
Consolidated financial statements.

Revenue
Sales

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all five (5) following conditions are satisfied:

- The Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

- The Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

- The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

- It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company;

- The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Services rendered

Revenue of a transaction involving the rendering of services is recognised when the outcome of such transactions
can be measured reliably. Where a transaction involving the rendering of services is attributable to several periods,
revenue is recognised in each period by reference to the percentage of completion of the transaction at the balance
sheet date of that period. The outcome of a transaction can be measured reliably when all four (4) following
- The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

- Ttis probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company;

- The percentage of completion of the transaction at the balance sheet date can be measured reliably; and

- The costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

Financial income

Revenue arising from the used by the others of entity assets yielding interest, royalties and dividends shall be
recognised when:

- It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company;

- The amount of the income can be measured reliably;

Dividends shall be recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.

e e 2 B el |

i<



BAO NGOC INVESTMENT GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Bao Ngoc Building, Lot A2CN8 Tu Liem Industrial Park, Consolidated financial statements
Phuong Canh Ward, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi For the year ended 31 December 2024
FORM B 09-DN

'

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Consolidated financial
sfatements

Revenue deductions

Revenue deductions from sales and service provisions arising in the year include: Trade discounts, sales
allowances and sales return.

Trade discounts, sales allowances and sales returns incurred in the same year of consumption of products, goods
and services are adjusted a decrease in revenue in the incurring year. In case products, goods and services are sold
from the previous year, until the next year are incurred deductible items, Company records a decrease in revenue
under the principles: If incurred prior to the issuance of Financial Statements then record a decrease in revenue on
the Consolidated financial statements of the reporting year (the previous year); and if incurred after the release of
Consolidated financial statements then record a decrease in revenue of incurring year (the next year).

Cost of goods sold

Cost of goods sold is recognized in accordance with revenue arising and ensure compliance with the prudence
principle. Cases of loss of materials and goods exceeded the norm, abnormal expenses, and losses of inventories
after deducting the responsibility of collective and individuals concerned,... are recognized fully and promptly into
cost of goods sold in the year.

Financial expenses

Items recorded into financial expenses consist of:

- Expenses or losses relating to financial investment activities;

- Expenses of capital borrowing;

- Losses from short-term security transfer, expenses of security selling transaction;

- Provision for business security decrease, provision for losses from investment in other units, losses incurred
when selling foreign currency, losses from exchange rate...

The above items are recorded by the total amount arising within the year without compensation to financial

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported
in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years (including loss carried forward, if any) and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.

Deferred tax is recognised on significant differences between carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and is accounted for
using balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates to items charged or
credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity. ,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets

against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority and the
Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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The determination of the tax currently payable is based on the current interpretation of tax regulations. However,
these regulations are subject to periodic variation and their ultimate determination depends on the results of the tax
authorities’ examinations.

Other taxes are paid in accordance with the prevailing tax laws in Vietnam.
Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing net profit or loss after tax for the year attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company (after adjusting for the bonus and welfare fund and allowance for Board of
Directors) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the .

Segment information

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged in providing an individual or group of
related products or services (business segment), or providing products or services within a particular economic
environment (geographical segment). Each segment is subject to risks and returns that are different from other
components.

Segment information should be prepared in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and
presenting the financial statements of the Company in order to help users of financial statements better understand
and make more informed judgements about the Company as a whole.

Related Parties

The parties are regarded as related parties if that party has the ability to control or significantly influence the other
party in making decisions about the financial policies and activities. The Company's related parties include:

- Companies, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, having control over the Company or
being under the control of the Company, or being under common control with the Company, including the
Company's parent, subsidiaries and affiliated companies;

- Individuals, directly or indirectly, holding voting power of the Company that have a significant influence on
the Company, key management personnel including directors and employees of the Company, the close
family members of these individuals; ;

- Enterprises due to the above-mentioned individuals directly or indirectly hold an important part of the voting
rights or have significant influence on the Company.

In considering the relationship of related parties, one should also consider the nature, not only the legal form of the
relationship.

5 .CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS '

31/12/2024 01/01/2024

VND VND

Cash on hand 14,143,548,609 7,258,105,379
Non term deposit 15,055,825,549 12,593,531,882
Cash equivalents 48,310,481,872 50,120,000,000
77,509,856,030 69,971,637,261

As at 31/12/2024, cash equivalents are term deposits of less than 3 months at commercial banks with interest rates
of 1.5% - 3.2%/year.
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6 .FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

FORM B 09-DN

!

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Original cost Book value Original cost Book value
VND VND VND VND
Short-term 34,907,669,396 34,907,669,396 24,000,000,000 24,000,000,000
Term deposits 34,907,669,396 34,907,669,396 24.,000,000,000 24.,000,000,000
34,907,669,396 34,907,669,396 24,000,000,000 24,000,000,000

As of December 31, 2024, short-term investments deposits from 3 months to 12 months at Banks with interest

rates from 3.2%/year to 4.2%/year.

7 .SHORT-TERM TRADE RECEIVABLES

Goodchoice Vietnam JSC

HDE Holdings [nvestment JSC
Wincommerce General Trading Service JSC
Ngoc Bao Production - Trading JSC
Bavigo International Trading JSC
Sen Vang B2B Service JSC

FDV Viet Nam Pharmaceutical JSC
LLC Hayat

UAB Baltic Gate Terminal

Thang Long Investment Group JSC
Triton Trade Limited

Create Capital Viet Nam JSC
Bestfood Co., LTD

Other trade receivables

Trade receivables from related parties
(Details as in Notes 39.)
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01/01/2024

(Retrospective

31/12/2024 restatement)
VND VND
961,251,962 11,758,294,480

15,475,088,750
5,794,158,917
3,924,805,965
4,931,220,300
3,437,267,138
35,562,286,464
31,664,638,774
16,871,037,875
11,603,361,265
8,038,738,234
7,205,617,278

362,864,644,655

4,120,665,490
767,743,423

3,240,497,124
15,728,642,787
20,016,812,558

133,195,283,927

508,334,117,577

188,827,939,789

5,080,164,719

49,750,865
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8 .SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS TO SUPPLIERS

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Value Provision Value Provision
VND VND VND VND
a)  Short-term prepayments to suppliers
Aloland Investment Joint - - 34,002,250,000 -
Stock Company
HDE Distribution JSC 16,761,654,357 - - -
Bao An Trading Import - - 120,741,479,000 -
Export Company Limited
Bao Tin International 65,147,027,088 - 15,000,000,000 -
Import Export Trading
Company Limited
Me Trang Coffee JSC 3,000,000,000 - - -
ABG Viet Nam JSC 18,969,150,487 - 29,779,000,000 -
Others 23,387,304,203 - 13,992,473,289 ! -
127,265,136,135 - 213,515,202,289 -
b) Prepayments to 4,374,601,932 - 9,700,243,139 -
suppliers from related
(Details as in Notes 39)
9 .OTHER RECEIVABLES
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Value Provision Value Provision
VND VND VND VND
a) Other short-term receivables
Receivables from social 180,328 - 2,885,717 -
insurance
Advances 6,525,000,000 - - ; =
Deposits 483,925,780 - 27,000,000 -
Others 102,709,545 - 381,651,956 -
7,111,815,653 - 411,537,673 -
b)  Other long-term receivables
Deposits 150,000,000 - 150,000,000 -
150,000,000 - 150,000,000 -
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10 . INVENTORIES
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Original cost Provision Original cost Provision
VND VND VND VND
Raw material 234,735,873,218 - 218,767,650,672 -
Tools, supplies 54,304,911 - 348,897,761 -
Finished goods 10,878,431,074 - 5,871,820,798 -
Goods 89,600,338 - 203,143,077,207 -
Goods on consignment 190,184,026,500 - 10,282,847,527 -
435,942,236,041 - 438,414,293,965 -
11 . LONG-TERM UNFINISHED ASSET

12

13

!

31/12/2024 01/01/2024

VND VND

Construction in progress 74,727,222,201 3,484,769,913
Bao Ngoc Southern Factory Project & 26,200,000,000 -
Office Repair 4,194,028,581 3,210,682,042
Website Design 255,252,000 255,252,000
Bao An Ha Nam Factory Project® 42,360,822,440 -
Factory renovation 1,717,119,180 18,835,871
74,727,222,201 3,484,769,913

) The Bao Ngoc Southern Factory Project is built based on the Investment Registration Certificate No.
1056084566 first issued by the Ho Chi Minh City Export Processing and Industrial Zones Authority on January
14, 2025. The project's objective is to produce cakes from flour. The project is located at Lot B13b/I, Road 2A,
Vinh Loc Industrial Park, Binh Hung Hoa B Ward, Binh Tan District, Ho Chi Minh City. The progress of the
investment project is as follows: Capital contribution progress until the 4th quarter of 2025; Total irvestment
completion time until the 4th quarter of 2027. Basic construction progress from the 4th quarter of 2025 to the 3rd
quarter of 2027, machinery and equipment installation time from the 4th quarter of 2027 to the 2nd quarter of
2028, the factory officially comes into operation from the 2nd quarter of 2028.

@ Bao An Ha Nam Factory Project was granted Investment Certificate No. 4324566706 for the first time on June
8, 2022 and the first change on October 31, 2024 by the Management Board of Industrial Parks of Ha Nam
province. The project implementation location is at Lot C, block CN8; Road D4, Chau Son Industrial Park, Chau
Son Ward, Phu Ly City, Ha Nam Province. The progress of the investment project is as follows: Capital
contribution progress until October 2024; Capital mobilization progress: until August 2026; Basic construction
progress and putting the project into operation or exploitation and operation, completing construction investment,
installing machinery and equipment and putting the project into operation from August 2026.

. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

» FINANCE LEASE FIXED ASSETS

The leased fixed assets are 02 machines and equipment with a total original price of VND 990,000,000, the
depreciation during the period is VND 206,250,000. On November 21, 2024, the Company purchased the leased
fixed assets, the remaining value of the leased fixed assets at the date of purchase is VND 14,895,834
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b)

16

. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Original cost

As at 01/01/2024

As at 31/12/2024
Accumulated depreciation
Asat 01/01/2024
Depreciation

As at 31/12/2024

Net carrying amount
Asat 01/01/2024

As at 31/12/2024

. PREPAID EXPENSES

Short-term prepaid expenses

Tools and consumables awaiting for allocation
Insurance costs

Business, advertising and marketing costs
Others

Long-term prepaid expenses

Tools and consumables awaiting for allocation
Land rental costs

Factory repair cost

Others

. GOOD WILL

The value of goodwill arising from the acquisition of

subsidiaries during the year

24
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Computer software Total
VND VND
6,098,456,667 6,098,456,667
6,098,456,667 6,098,456,667
2,510,609,166 2,510,609,166
1,016,665,333 1,016,665,333
3,527,274,499 3,527,274,499
3,587,847,501 3,587,847,501
2,571,182,168 2,571,182,168
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
468,661,868 2,636,388,081
80,668,611 167,785,639
5,427,671,069 1,070,798,034
1,495,012,706 1,423,956,273
7,472,014,254 5,298,928,027

3,847,118,503
14,082,514,005

185,595,854
14,549,567,138

126,401,917 326,689,237
131,670,548 69,718,157
18,187,704,973 15,131,570,386
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
1,551,459,783 426,123,969
1,551,459,783 426,123,969
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17 . SHORT-TERM TRADE PAYABLES

b)

18

b)

Short-term trade payables

Ha Lan Investment and
Trading Co.,Ltd

Tien Nhan Investment
Production and Trading
Tuan Yen Flour Import
Export Co.,Ltd

Gia Bao Group JSC

My Le Company
(Limited)

Bao An Import Export
Trading Company

Viet A Production trading
service company limited
Nam Hoa Thanh trading
import export Co.,Ltd
Other loan payables

Trade payables from
related parties

(Details as in Notes 39)

FORM B 09-DN

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Qutstanding Amount can be Outstanding Amount can be
balance paid balance paid
VND VND VND VND
11,179,758,762 11,179,758,762 7,557,860,767 7,557‘,860,767
15,840,908,924 15,840,908,924 79,526,496 79,526,496

11,641,054,721

16,181,043,900
2,390,204,550

10,604,439,000

67,529,233,308

11,641,054,721

16,181,043,900
2,390,204,550

10,604,439,000

67,529,233,308

13,488,886,488

9,847,906,140

60,044,131,455

13,488,886,488
9,847,906,140

60,044,131,455

. SHORT-TERM ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS

Refrigeration Electrical Engineering Bach Khoa Co.Ltd (*)
ABG Vietnam Joint Stock Company
Create capital Vietnam Joint Stock Company Limited

Others

135,366,643,165 135,366,643,165 91,018,311,346 91,018,311,346
567,497,685 567,497,685 1,251,125,559 1,251,125,559
01/01/2024
(Retrospective
31/12/2024 restatement)
VND VND
48,000,000,000 48,000,000,000
- 75,220
- 3,655,057,966
7,686,258,635 5,098,310,832
!
55,686,258,635 56,753,444,018

(*) Prepaid related to the contract for the purchase of assets attached to the leased land on December 15, 2022, at
the construction site on the land at the address: Lot A2 CN8 Tu Liem Industrial Park, Phuong Canh Ward, Nam
Tu Liem District, Hanoi City. Bao Ngoc Investment Group Joint Stock Company issued an invoice for this
transaction on February 9, 2023, however, at the time of issuing this report, the above transfer transaction has not
been legally completed because the Certificate of land use rights, house ownership rights and assets attached to the
land has not been transferred to Refrigeration Electrical Engineering Bach Khoa Co.Ltd.

Advances from customers from related parties

(Details as in Notes 39.)
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statements
19 . TAX AND PAYABLES FROM STATE BUDGET
20 . OTHER PAYABLES
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
a) Other short-term payables 817,448,942 162,194,443
Social insurance 275,070,169 129,358,950
Health insurance 28,270,800 21,527,300
Unemployment insurance 12,465,600 10,145,800
Others 501,642,373 1,162,393
817,448,942 162,194,443
b) Other long-term payables 966,000,000 -
Long-term deposits, collateral received 966,000,000 -
966,000,000 -
21 . LOANS AND FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES (Details on Appendix 03)
22 . DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS
01701/2024
(Retrospective
31/12/2024 restatement)
VND VND
Corporate income tax rate used to determine the value of Deferred
income tax assets 20% 20%
Deferred income tax assets related to deductible temporary 2,239,291,721 1,983,427,255
differences
2,239,291,721 1,983,427,255
23 . OWNER’S EQUITY
a) Increase and decrease in owner’s equity (Details on appendix 04)
b) Details of owner’s invested capital
Rate 31/12/2024 Rate 01/01/2024
(%) VND (%) VND
Mr Le Duc Thuan 36.06% 112,696,680,000 36.06% 90,157’,350,000
Others 63.94% 199,797,260,000 63.94% 159,841,200,000
100% 312,493,940,000 100% 249,998,550,000
¢) Capital transactions with owners and distribution of dividends and profits
01/01/2024
(Retrospective
Year 2024 restatement)
VND VND
Owner’s invested capital 312,493,940,000 249,998,550,000
- At the beginning of year 249,998,550,000 249,998,550,000
- Increase in the year 62,495,390,000 =
- At the ending of year 312,493,940,000 249,998,550,000
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d) Stock

Quantity of Authorized issuing stocks
Quantity of issued stocks

- Common stocks

Quantity of circulation stocks

- Common stocks

Par value per stock (VND)

f)  Company’s funds

Investment and development fund

FORM B 09-DN

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
31,249,394 24,999,855
31,249,394 24,999,855
31,249,394 24,999,855
31,249,394 24,999,855
31,249,394 24,999,855
10,000 10,000
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND ,  VND

3,055,393,794

1,698,273,899

3,055,393,794

1,698,273,899

24 . REVENUE FROM SALE OF GOODS AND RENDERING OF SERVICES

Revenue from sale of finished goods
Revenue from services rendered

Revenue from relevant parties
(Details as in Notes 39.)

25 . DEDUCTIBLE ITEMS

Trade discount
Sales return
Sales rebates

26 . COSTS OF GOODS SOLD

Cost of finished goods sold
Costs of services rendered

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
1,740,404,516,644 1,448,450,048,798
133,957,590 19,648,871
1,740,538,474,234 1,448,469,697,669
11,667,248,230 1,863,946,761

!
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
1,584,939,244 327,089,558
12,391,579,278 15,535,742,319
500,357,466 -
14,476,875,988 15,862,831,877
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
1,541,749,514,117 1,269,690,772,321
113,682,736 -

1,541,863,196,853

1,269,690,772,321
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BAO NGOC INVESTMENT GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Bao Ngoc Building, Lot A2CN8 Tu Liem Industrial Park,
Phuong Canh Ward, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi

Consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Consolidated financial
Statements

27 .

28

29

30

FINANCE INCOME

Interest income, interest from loans

Gain from selling investments
Realized gain from foreign exchange difference
Others

. FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Interest expenses

Realized loss from foreign exchange difference
Unrealized loss from foreign exchange difference
Others

. SELLING EXPENSES

Raw materials

Labor

Depreciation and amortisation
Expenses from external services
Other expenses by cash

Raw materials

Labor

Depreciation and amortisation
Tax, Charge, Fee

Expenses from external services
Goodwill

Other expenses by cash

. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

28

FORM B 09-DN

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
2,396,558,635 1,268,520,662
10,459,600 -
5,836,192,008 2,435,466,023
225,049 -
8,243,435,292 3,703,986,685
Year 2024 \zear 2023
VND VND
38,254,618,355 33,562,518,427

1,907,363,653
1,096,690,018

1,537,328,811

136,026,556 -
41,394,698,582 35,099,847,238
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
36,666,668 58,639,784
12,177,664,280 11,804,908,298
704,300,754 1,053,907,420
36,778,490,748 30,984,159,303
737,580,391 25,187,193
50,434,702,841 43,926,801,998
Year 2023

(Retrospective

Year 2024 restatement)
VND VND
769,575,747 707,966,821
8,538,250,415 7,927,641,583
5,843,309,117 5,116,981,144
2,086,809,812 1,740,479,556
9,757,560,885 8,251,790,402
172,470,994 83,645,582
1,856,715,436 719,773,024
29,024,692,406 24,548,278,112

Y
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BAO NGOC INVESTMENT GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Bao Ngoc Building, Lot A2CN8 Tu Liem Industrial Park,
Phuong Canh Ward, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi

Consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Consolidated financial
Statements

31

32 .

33

34

. OTHER INCOME

FORM B 09-DN

Year 2023
(Retrospective
Year 2024 restatement)
VND VND
Gain from liquidating, disposing fixed assets 2,155,108,280 -
Others 35,028,881 9,761,112
2,190,137,161 9,761,112

OTHER EXPENSES
Year 2023
(Retrospective
Year 2024 restatement)
VND VND
Fines 1,445,444,390 4,171,691,246
Others ‘ 2,708,517,945 1,168,404,883
4,153,962,335 5,340,096,129

. CURRENT BUSINESS INCOME TAX EXPENSES

‘r;ear 2023
(Retrospective
Year 2024 restatement)
VND VND

Total profit before tax 69,623,917,682

57,714,817,791

Current corporate income tax expenses 15,528,721,140 13,912,290,570
Current corporate income tax expenses 15,528,721,140 13,912,290,570
. BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earning per share distributed to common shareholders of the company is calculated as follows :

31/12/2023

(Retroactively

Year 2024 adjusted)

VND VND

Profit after tax 53,187,658,103 43,790,943,327

Adjustment (1,357,119,895) B

- Bonus and welfare funds distributed firom after tax earning (1,357,119,895) -

Profit distributed for common stocks 51,830,538,208 43,790,943,327

Average circulated common stocks in the year 25,496,394 24,999,855

Basic earnings per share 2,033 1,752

Basic earnings per share have been adjusted retroactively as defined in Vietnamese Accounting Standards No. 30

— Basic earnings per share.
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BAO NGOC INVESTMENT GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Bao Ngoc Building, Lot A2CN8 Tu Liem Industrial Park,

Phuong Canh Ward, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi

Consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Consolidated financial
statements

35 . BUSINESS AND PRODUCTIONS COST BY ITEMS

36

Raw materials

Labour

Depreciation and amortisation
Tax, Charge, Fee

Expenses from external services
Other expenses by cash

. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The types of financial instruments of the Company include:

FORM B 09-DN

Year 2023

(Retrospective

Year 2024 restatement)

VND [ VND
1,273,942,217,195 1,168,510,353,368
47,400,772,955 37,210,035,747

17,353,165,121
2,086,875,812
55,966,864,555
1,503,568,704

15,054,268,407
1,740,479,556
47,551,284,911
921,170,058

1,398,253,464,342

1,270,987,592,047

Carrying amount

31/12/2024 01/01/2024(Retrospective restatement)
Original Cost Provision Original Cost Provision
VND VND VND /' VND
Financial Assets
Cash and cash 77,509,856,030 - 69,971,637,261 -
equivalents
Trade receivables, other  515,595,933,230 - 189,389,477.462 -
receivables
Short term investments 34,907,669,396 - 24,000,000,000 -
628,013,458,656 - 283,361,114,723 -
Carrying amount
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND

Financial Liabilities

Loans and borrowings

Trade payables, other payables
Accrued expenses

860,915,803,966
137,150,092,107

458,722,708,238
91,180,505,789
438,279,632

998,065,896,073

550,341,493,659

Financial assets and financial liabilities are not revalued according to fair value at the year ended because Circular
No. 210/2009/TT-BTC and prevailing statutory regulations require to present Financial Statements and additional
note for financial instruments but do not provide any relevant instructions for assessment and recognition of fair
value of financial assets and liabilities, excluding provisions for bad debts and provision for devaluation of
securities investments which are presented in relevant notes.
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BAO NGOC INVESTMENT GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Bao Ngoc Building, Lot A2CN8 Tu Liem Industrial Park, Consolidated financial statements
Phuong Canh Ward, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi For the year ended 31 December 2024

FORM B 09-DN
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Consolidated financial
statements

Financial risk management

The Company’s financial risks including market risk, credit risk and liquidility risk. The Company has developed
its control system to ensure the reasonable balance between cost of incurred risks and cost of risk management.
The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for monitoring the risk management process to ensure the
appropriate balance between risk and risk control.

Market risk
The Company*s business operations will bear the risks of changes on prices, exchange rates and interest rates.

Price Risk

The Company bears price risk of equity instruments from short-term and long-term security investments due to
uncertainty on future prices of the securities. Long-term securities are holded for long-term strategies, at the end of
the fiscal year, the Company has no plans to sell these investments.

Exchange rate risk

The Company bears the risk of exchange rate due to fluctuation in fair value of future cash flows of a financial
instrument according to changes in exchange rates if loans, revenues and expenses of the Company are done in
foreign currencies other than VND.

Interest rate risk

The Company bears the risk of interest rates due to fluctuation in fair value of future cash flow of a financial
instrument according to changes in market interest rates if the Company has time or demand deposits, foans and
debts subject to floating interest rates. The Company manages interest rate risk by analyzing the market
competition situation to obtain any interest profitable for its operation purpose.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is risk in which the potential loss may be incurred if a counterpart fails to perform its obligations under
contractual terms or financial instruments. The Company has credit risk from operating activities (mainly for trade
receivables) and financial activities (including bank deposits, loans and other financial instruments).

Less than | year From | - 5 years More than 5 years Total
VND VND VND VND
As at 31/12/2024
Cash and cash 77,509,856,030 E - 77,509,856,030
equivalents
Trade receivables, other  515,445,933,230 150,000,000 - 515,595,933,230
receivables
Short term investments 34,907,669,396 - - 34,907,669,396
627,863,458,656 150,000,000 - 628,013,458,656
As at 01/01/2024(Retrospective restatement)
Cash and cash 69,971,637,261 - - 69,971,637,261
equivalents
Trade receivables, other  189,239,477,462 150,000,000 - 189,389,477.,462
receivables
Short term investments 24,000,000,000 - - 24,000,000,000
283,211,114,723 150,000,000 - 283,361,114,723
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BAO NGOC INVESTMENT GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Bao Ngoc Building, Lot A2CN8 Tu Liem Industrial Park,
Phuong Canh Ward, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi

Consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORM B 09-DN
/

These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Consolidated financial
statements

37

38

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk in which the Company has trouble in settlement of its financial obligations due to lack of
funds. Liquidity risk of the Company is mainly from different maturity of its financial assets and liabilities.

Due date for payment of financial liabilities based on expected payment under the contracts (based on cash flow of
the original debts) as follows:

Less than 1 year From 1 - 5 years More than 5 years Total
VND VND VND VND
As at 31/12/2024
Loans and borrowings 705,672,388,520 110,385,344,910 44,858,070,536 860,915,803,966
Trade payables, other 136,184,092,107 966,000,000 - 13?,150/,092, 107
payables |
841,856,480,627 111,351,344,910 44,858,070,536 998,065,896,073
As at 01/01/2024
Loans and borrowings 452,882,758,238 5,839,950,000 . 458,722,708,238
Trade payables, other 91,180,505,789 - - 91,180,505,789
payables
Accrued expenses 438,279,632 - - 438,279,632
544,501,543,659 5,839,950,000 - 550,341,493,659

The Company believes that risk level of loan repayment is low. The Company has the ability to pay debts matured
from cash flows from its operating activities and cash received from matured financial assets.

. EVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

There have been no significant events occurring after the reporting year, which would require adjustments or

disclosures to be made in the Consolidated financial statements. /
. SEGMENT REPORTING
Under business fields
Production Commercial
Activities Activities Total
VND VND VND
Net revenue from sales to outside 1,725,927,640,656 133,957,590 1,726,061,598,246
Cost of goods sold to outsiders 1,541,749,514,117 113,682,736 1,541,863,196,853
rgss profi from fle:of goods snc 184,178,126,539 20,274,854 184,198,401,393
rendering of services
The total cost to acquire fixed assets - - 195,724,551,375
Segment assets 528,185,473,745 - 528,185,473,745
Unallocated assets - - 1,089,007,718,860
Total assets 528,185,473,745 - 1,617,193,192,605
Segment liabilities - - -
Unallocated liabilities B - 1,078,128,069,878
Total liabilities - - 1,078,128,069,878
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BAO NGOC INVESTMENT GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Bao Ngoc Building, Lot A2CN8 Tu Liem Industrial Park,
Phuong Canh Ward, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi

Consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2024

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORM B 09-DN

These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Consolidated financial

statements

Under geographical areas

The Company's business activities during the period only take place within the territory of Vietnam, so the

Company does not prepare Segment Reports by geographical area.

39 . TRANSACTION AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

In the fiscal year, the Company has the transactions and balances with related parties as follows:

Transactions during the year:

Relation Year 2024 Year 2023

VND ~ VND

Revenues from sales and services rendered 11,667,248,230 1,863,946,761
A Long Joint Stock Company (1) 44,656,179 12,025,261
ABG Viet Nam Joint Stock Company (2) - 1,851,921,500
Tay Do Packaging Production JSC (3) 43,643,600 -
Bavigo International Trading JSC (5) 11,578,948,451 -
Purchase 33,184,049,639 0,284,923,987
A Long Joint Stock Company (D 14,475,000 -
Tay Do Packaging Production JSC 3) 33,169,312,829 6,284,923,987
Bavigo International Trading JSC (5) 261,810 -

Qutstanding balances up to the reporting date are as follows:

Relation 31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
Trade receivables 5,080,164,719 49!,750,865
A Long Joint Stock Company (1) 39,230,584 6,296,719
ABG Viet Nam Joint Stock Company 4 - 75,220
Tay Do Packaging Production JSC 2) - 43,378,926
Bavigo International Trading JSC (3) 5,040,934,135 -
Prepayments to suppliers 4,374,601,932 9,700,243,139
Tay Do Packaging Production JSC 2) 1,374,601,932 9,700,243,139
Me Trang Coffee Group JSC (5) 3,000,000,000 E
Trade payables 567,497,685 1,251,125,559
Tay Do Packaging Production JSC (2) 567,497,685 1,251,125,559
Advances from customers 2,189,485,986
Tay Do Packaging Production JSC @) 2,189,485,986 -

(1) Chairman of the Company is a shareholder owning 10% shares or more of the related party
(2) General Director of the Company is the Chairman of the related party.
(3) The member of the Board of Directors of the Company is the Director of the related party.

/

(4) The Director of the above Company is the wife of the Chairman. As at 05 December 2023, this company is no

longer a related party due to change in Director.

(5) The Chairman of the Company is a member of the Board of Directors of the related party, and the member of
the Board of Directors is General Director of the related party. Became a related party on 16 December 2024,
transactions arising before becoming a related party under Contract No. 0212/HDNT/MT-BN signed on 02nd

December 2024.
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BAO NGOC INVESTMENT GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Bao Ngoc Building, Lot AZCN8 Tu Liem Industrial Park,
Phuong Canh Ward, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi

Consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2024

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Consolidated financial

statements

Transactions with other related parties:

Remuneration to members of The Board of Management and

Mr Le duc Thuan Chairman

Mr Tran Xuan Vinh Member

Mrs Bui Thi Thanh Huong Member of Board of
Directors cum General
Director (resigned)

Mr Nguyen Trung Hieu Member

Mr Dang Minh Quang Member

Remuneration to members of Board of Supervision

Le Thi Thanh Huyen

Nguyen Cong Minh Member from 28/06/2024

Nguyen Thi Huyen Member from 28/06/2024

Duong Dac Lam Member until 28/06/2024

Le Van Tuan Member until 28/06/2024

40 . COMPARATIVE FIGURES

FORM B 09-DN

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
765,935,464 1,030,292,134
150,000,000 150,000,000
84,000,000 84,000,000
- 450,520,955
447,935,464 261,771,179
84,000,000 84,000,000
406,676,280 192,676,371
208,370,280 -
24,000,000 -
126,306,000 -
24,000,000 102,271,525
24,000,000 90,404,846

The comparative figures on the Consolidated Financial Statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023,

audited by TTP Auditing Company Limited.
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BAO NGOC INVESTMENT GROUP JOINT STOCK COMPANY ./

Bao Ngoc Building, Lot A2CN8 Tu Liem Industrial Park, Consolidated financial statements
Phuong Canh Ward, Nam Tu Liem District, Hanoi For the year ended 31 December 2024

FORM B 09-DN
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Consolidated financial
Statements

During the accounting period from 01st January 2024 to 31 December 2024, the Board of Directors of the
Company decided to Retrospective restatement indicators related to the transfer of fixed assets, "Bao Ngoc
Building" to Refrigeration Electrical Engineering Bach Khoa Co.Ltd, on the audited consolidated financial
statements for 2023 and the consolidated financial statements for the accounting period quarter IV 2023, a number
of comparative indicators on the separate financial statements of this period being restated as follows:

Presented on the last

Retrospective year,financial

Items Code restatement statements
VND VND

Consolidated balance sheet
Short-term trade receivables 131 188,827,939,789 195,827,939,789
Taxes and other amounts receivable from the State 153 5,000,400,000 400,000
Tangible fixed assets 221 144,024,965,064 05,832,948,221
Original price 222 227,435,921,452 175,241,512,556
Accumulated depreciation 223 (83,410,956,388) (79,408,564,335)
Deferred income tax assets 262 1,983,427,255 1,621,830,623
Short-term advance payment buyer 312 56,753,444.018 8,753,444,018
Undistributed profit after tax 421 135,726,492,731 137,172,879,256
Undistributed profit this period 421b 43,790,943,327 45,237,329,852
Consolidated income statements
Business management costs 26 24,548,278,112 23,336,358,308
Other income 31 9,761,112 605{,824,465
Deferred corporate income tax expense 52 (554,167,273) (192,570,641)
Basic earnings per share 70 1,752 1,832
Consolidated cash flows statements
Depreciation of fixed assets and investment real estate 02 16,187,781,126 14,975,861,322
Profit and loss from investment activities 05 (1,268,520,662) (1,864,584,015)
Increase, decrease receivables 09 (124,726,857,007) (131,726,857,007)
Increase, decrease in payables (excluding interest 11 94,156,344,641 58,156,344,641
payable, corporate income tax payable)
Proceeds from liquidation and sale of fixed assets 22 - 43,000,000,000

and other long-term assets

o U

Lai Thi Thu Ha Dinh Thi Thuy Hanh
Preparer Chief Accountant

Chairman

Ha Noi, March 26th, 2025
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